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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)

Particulars DLF Southern Towns Private Limited

[till 20 March 2017]

DLF Southern Homes Private Limited 

[till 20 March 2017]

31 March 

2017

31 March 

2016

1 April 2015 31 March 

2017

31 March 

2016

1 April 

2015

Current financial liabilities (excluding 

trade payables and provisions)

- 36,378.23 31,063.64 - 35,819.45 27,258.79

Trade payables and provisions - 3,890.15 4,238.76 - 7,382.55 10,758.07

Current liabilities (C) - 40,268.38 35,302.40 - 43,202.00 38,016.86

Non-current financial liabilities (excluding 

trade payables and provisions)

- 145.11 - - 1,410.56 1,945.87

Trade payables and provisions - 29.77 23.78 - 80.38 79.11

Non-current liabilities (D) - 174.89 23.78 - 1,490.94 2,024.98

Net assets (A+B-C-D) - 59,499.62 48,370.36 - 47,137.27 62,325.29

 (` in lakhs)

Particulars YG Realty Private Limited SC Hospitality Private Limited

31 March 

2017

31 March 

2016

1 April 2015 31 March 

2017

31 March 

2016

1 April 

2015

Cash and cash equivalents 2,824.77 2,176.32 416.87 - - 1,261.79

Other assets 1,269.70 1,713.39 966.33 - - 20,100.91

Current assets (A) 4,094.47 3,889.71 1,383.20 - - 21,362.70

Non-current assets (B) 102,024.52 103,804.64 104,463.58 - - 13,333.77

Current financial liabilities (excluding 

trade payables and provisions)

10,032.55 4,959.76 641.10 - - 33,138.10

Trade payables and provisions 906.99 808.33 1,140.82 - - 2,810.50

Current liabilities (C) 10,939.54 5,768.09 1,781.92 - - 35,948.60

Non-current financial liabilities (excluding 

trade payables and provisions)

84,329.63 91,716.09 86,412.46 - - -

Trade payables and provisions 8.93 7.88 13.91 - - 22.51

Non-current liabilities (D) 84,338.56 91,723.97 86,426.37 - - 22.51

Net assets (A+B-C-D) 10,840.89 10,202.29 17,638.49 - - (1,274.64)

 (` in lakhs)

Particulars Joyous Housing Limited Designplus Associates Services Private 

Limited

31 March 

2017

31 March 

2016

1 April 2015 31 March 

2017

31 March 

2016

1 April 

2015

Cash and cash equivalents 32.07 20.29 375.25 33.12 15.49 94.41

Other assets 59,202.69 49,987.61 41,623.33 1,292.79 1356.50 2,000.73

Current assets (A) 59,234.76 50,007.90 41,998.58 1,325.91 1,371.99 2,095.14

Non-current assets (B) 4,859.10 816.23 737.64 134.07 158.53 168.77

Current financial liabilities (excluding 

trade payables and provisions)

2,076.21 42,376.64 34,793.73 396.64 446.49 350.77

Trade payables and provisions 881.93 905.36 371.66 178.58 211.28 91.03

Current liabilities (C) 2,958.14 43,282.00 35,165.39 575.22 657.77 441.80

Non-current financial liabilities (excluding 

trade payables and provisions)

57,169.39 3,039.09 2,986.39 - 2.03 6.86

Trade payables and provisions 3.03 2.61 2.67 107.65 89.52 73.64

Non-current liabilities (D) 57,172.42 3,041.70 2,989.06 107.65 91.55 80.50

Net assets (A+B-C-D) 3,963.30 4,500.43 4,581.77 777.11 781.20 1,741.61

(` in lakhs)
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Summarised Statement of profit and loss 

(` in lakhs)

Particulars DLF Garden City Indore Private 

Limited [till 20 March 2017]

DLF Homes Rajapura Private 

Limited [till 20 March 2017]

For the period 

ended

20 March 2017

For the year 

ended

31 March 2016

For the period 

ended

20 March 2017

For the year 

ended

31 March 2016

Revenue 946.97 1,411.96 5,669.09 10,225.17

Interest income 107.81 83.23 1,036.00 1,219.03

Total revenue (A) 1,054.78 1,495.19 6,705.09 11,444.20

Depreciation and amortisation 64.64 66.65 3.66 3.78

Employee benefit expense 66.88 85.01 - -

Other finance costs 6.53 24.49 35.43 1,805.53

Other expense 1,013.51 540.31 4,647.55 9,519.95

Total expenses (B) 1,151.56 716.46 4,686.64 11,329.26

Profit/(loss) before tax (C = A-B) (96.78) 778.73 2,018.45 114.94

Tax expense (D) 66.12 305.23 710.84 50.17

Profit/(loss) for the year (E = C-D) (162.90) 473.50 1,307.61 64.77

Other comprehensive income (F) (0.89) 0.63 - -

Total comprehensive income (E+F) (163.79) 474.13 1,307.61 64.77

Share of profit/(loss) for the year (59.19) 171.35 535.20 26.51

 (` in lakhs)

Particulars DLF Urban Private Limited DLF Midtown Private Limited

For the year 

ended

31 March 2017

For the year 

ended

31 March 2016

For the year 

ended

31 March 2017

For the year 

ended

31 March 2016

Revenue - - - -

Interest income 0.01 3.16 - 11.74

Total revenue (A) 0.01 3.16 - 11.74

Other finance costs 7.44 16.06 13.35 21.68

Other expense 17.58 153.05 17.04 387.84

Total expenses (B) 25.02 169.11 30.39 409.52

Profit/(loss) before tax (C = A-B) (25.01) (165.95) (30.39) (397.78)

Tax expense (D) - - - -

Profit/(loss) for the year (E = C-D) (25.01) (165.95) (30.39) (397.78)

Other comprehensive income (F) - - - -

Total comprehensive income (E+F) (25.01) (165.95) (30.39) (397.78)

Share of profit/(loss) for the year (12.25) (81.31) (14.89) (194.19)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)

 (` in lakhs)

Particulars DLF Southern Towns Private 

Limited [till 20 March 2017]

DLF Southern Homes Private 

Limited [till 20 March 2017]

For the period 

ended

20 March 2017

For the year 

ended

31 March 2016

For the period 

ended

20 March 2017

For the year 

ended

31 March 2016

Revenue (172.87) 5,665.23 4,335.97 4,147.89

Interest income 14.02 151.66 166.43 422.56

Total revenue (A) (158.85) 5,816.89 4,502.41 4,570.45

Depreciation and amortisation 15.89 16.71 169.23 178.88

Employee benefit expense 161.24 133.34 253.21 293.02

Other finance costs 2,819.37 11,247.52 2,343.09 3,064.10

Other expense 1,452.56 6,681.20 8,377.85 15,866.55

Total expenses (B) 4,449.06 18,078.77 11,143.38 19,402.55

Profit/(loss) before tax (C = A-B) (4,607.91) (12,261.88) (6,640.97) (14,832.10)

Tax expense (D) (2.72) (2.66) - 362.50

Profit/(loss) for the year (E = C-D) (4,605.19) (12,259.22) (6,640.97) (15,194.60)

Other comprehensive income (F) (3.61) (0.96) (1.11) 6.57

Total comprehensive income (E+F) (4,608.80) (12,260.18) (6,642.08) (15,188.03)

Share of profit/(loss) for the year (1,360.06) (3,617.98) (3,387.46) (7,745.90)

(` in lakhs)

Particulars YG Realty Private Limited SC Hospitality Private Limited 

[till 2 June 2015]

For the year 

ended

31 March 2017

For the year 

ended

31 March 2016

For the year 

ended

31 March 2017

For the period 

ended

2 June 2015

Revenue 11,819.56 8,977.62 - 1,182.26

Interest income 811.43 721.70 - 51.84

Total revenue (A) 12,630.99 9,699.32 - 1,234.10

Cost of revenue - - - 670.48

Employee benefit expense - - - 98.22

Depreciation and amortisation 2,923.31 2,823.93 - 111.64

Other finance costs 10,375.51 12,125.21 - 501.06

Other expense 2,303.87 2,186.47 - 258.32

Total expenses (B) 15,602.69 17,135.61 - 1,639.72

Profit/(loss) before tax (C = A-B) (2,971.70) (7,436.29) - (405.62)

Tax expense (D) - - - 41.68

Profit/(loss) for the year (E = C-D) (2,971.70) (7,436.29) - (363.94)

Other comprehensive income (F) 1.04 0.09 - -

Total comprehensive income (E+F) (2,970.66) (7,436.20) - (363.94)

Share of profit/(loss) for the year (1,485.33) (3,718.10) - (181.97)
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(` in lakhs)

Particulars Joyous Housing Limited Designplus Associates Services 

Private Limited

For the year 

ended

31 March 2017

For the year 

ended

31 March 2016

For the year 

ended

31 March 2017

For the year 

ended

31 March 2016

Revenue 331.92 - 1,790.73 1,626.29

Interest income 85.83 69.37 41.04 62.34

Total revenue (A) 417.75 69.37 1,831.77 1,688.63

Cost of revenue (6,628.27) (5,540.34) - -

Depreciation and amortisation 19.56 19.65 17.22 33.12

Employee benefit expenses 153.62 149.35 905.77 1,011.07

Other finance costs 7,034.88 5,492.70 16.48 15.74

Other expense 25.92 16.04 886.05 1,607.54

Total expenses (B) 605.71 137.40 1,825.52 2,667.47

Profit/(loss) before tax (C = A-B) (187.96) (68.03) 6.25 (978.84)

Tax expense (D) 351.16 14.90 (10.35) 17.24

Profit/(loss) for the year (E = C-D) (539.12) (82.93) (4.10) (961.60)

Other comprehensive income (F) 1.97 1.09 - -

Total comprehensive income (E+F) (537.15) (81.84) (4.10) (961.60)

Share of profit/(loss) for the year (201.42) (30.69) (1.74) (408.59)

Summarised financial information for all material associates

Summarised Balance sheets 

(` in lakhs)

Particulars DLF Homes Panchkula Private Limited

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Cash and cash equivalents 61.02 104.42 875.94

Other assets 87,414.50 82,231.76 68,745.77

Current assets (A) 87,475.52 82,336.18 69,621.71

Non-current assets (B) 1,048.05 939.29 1,279.90

Current financial liabilities (excluding trade payables and provisions) 69,049.13 56,668.52 35,098.22

Trade payables and provisions 14,943.56 14,064.18 14,816.29

Current liabilities (C) 83,992.69 70,732.70 49,914.51

Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade payables and provisions) - - -

Trade payables and provisions 33.08 19.68 15.99

Non-current liabilities (D) 33.08 19.68 15.99

Net assets (A+B-C-D) 4,497.80 12,523.09 20,971.11

Summarised Statement of profit and loss  

 (` in lakhs)

Particulars DLF Homes Panchkula Private 

Limited

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Revenue 3,980.52 (52.73)

Loss for the year (A) (8,018.20) (8,546.52)

Other comprehensive income (B) (7.09) 0.03

Total comprehensive income (A+B) (8,025.29) (8,546.49)

Share of profit for the year (3,173.20) (3,379.28)
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Other informations

Contingent liabilities for joint ventures and associates  

 (` in lakhs)

Description 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Contingent liabilities – joint ventures and associates

Share of contingent liabilities incurred jointly with other investors of the joint 

ventures and associates

884.20 26,598.23 21,475.96

The Group has undertaken to provide continued financial support to its joint ventures and associates as and when required.

Dividend income and information related to fair value

No dividends were received from joint ventures and associates during the year ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016. All the joint ventures 

and associates are either private companies or closely held public companies and hence, no quoted market price available for its shares.

 48. RELATED PARTY INFORMATION

a) Subsidiaries/Joint ventures/Associates

 Details are presented in Note 45.

b) Key management personnel, their relatives and Other enterprises under the control of the key management personnel and 

their relatives:

 i) Key management personnel and their relatives:

Name of key management personnel Designation Relatives

Dr. K.P. Singh Chairman Ms. Renuka Talwar (Daughter)

Mr. Rajiv Singh Vice Chairman Ms. Anushka Singh (Daughter)

Ms. Pia Singh [till 20 May 2015] Whole-time Director Mr. Dhiraj Sarna (Husband)

Mr. Mohit Gujral CEO & Whole-time Director

Mr. Rajeev Talwar CEO & Whole-time Director

  *  Relatives of key management personnel (other than key management personnel themselves) with whom there were transactions 

during the year.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)

ii)  Other enterprises under the control of the key 

management personnel and their relatives:

1. A.S.G. Realcon Private Limited

2. Adampur Agricultural Farm

3. Adept Real Estate Developers Private Limited

4. AGS Buildtech Private Limited

5. Alfa Investments Global Limited

6. Angus Builders & Developers Private Limited

7. Antriksh Properties Private Limited

8. Anubhav Apartments Private Limited

9. Arihant Housing Company*

10. Atria Partners

11. B&M Hotbreads Private Limited [w.e.f. 24 April 2016]

12. Beckon Investments Group Limited

13. Belicia Builders & Developers Private Limited

14. Beverly Builders LLP

15. Buland Consultants & Investments Private Limited

16. Carreen Builders & Developers Private Limited

17. Centre Point Property Management Services LLP

ii)  Other enterprises under the control of the key 

management personnel and their relatives: (Contd.)

18. CGS Charitable Trust

19. Ch. Lal Chand Memorial Charitable Trust

20. Cian Retail Private Limited

21. Das Retail Private Limited [w.e.f. 1 October 2016]

22. DBL Kidskart Online Private Limited

23. Delanco Buildcon Private Limited

24. Desent Promoters & Developers Private Limited

25. Diana Retail Private Limited

26. DLF Brands Limited

27. DLF Building & Services Private Limited

28. DLF Commercial Enterprises

29. DLF Employees Welfare Trust

30. DLF Foundation

31. DLF Investments Private Limited

32. DLF M.T.FBD Medical and Community Facilities 

Charitable Trust

33. DLF Q.E.C. Educational Charitable Trust
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ii)  Other enterprises under the control of the key 

management personnel and their relatives: (Contd.)

34. DLF Q.E.C. Medical Charitable Trust

35. DLF Raghvendra Temple Trust

36. Dreamweaver Investment and Business Solutions Private 

Limited [w.e.f. 2 June 2016]

37. Elephanta Estates Private Limited

38. Eros Retail Private Limited

39. Excel Housing Construction LLP

40. Exe. of The Estate of Lt. Ch. Raghvendra Singh

41. Exe. of The Estate of Lt. Smt. Prem Mohini [till 2 September 

2016]

42. Exotic R - Online Fashion Private Limited

43. Ferragamo Retail India Private Limited [till 19 December 2016]

44. First City Management Company Private Limited

45. Gangrol Agricultural Farm & Orchard

46. General Marketing Corporation

47. GeoEnpro Petroleum Limited [w.e.f. 24 April 2016 till 24 

August 2016]

48. Giorgio Armani India Private Limited

49. Glensdale Enterprise Development Private Limited

50. Good Luck Trust

51. Gujral Design Plus Overseas Private Limited

52. Haryana Electrical Udyog Private Limited

53. Herminda Builders & Developers LLP [formerly Herminda 

Builders & Developers Private Limited]

54. Hitech Property Developers Private Limited

55. IKPS Family Trust [w.e.f. 11 March 2017]

56. Indira Trust

57. Ishtar Retail LLP [formerly Ishtar Retail Private Limited]

58. Jhandewalan Ancillaries LLP

59. JSF Food Private Limited [w.e.f. 24 April 2016]

60. Jubilant Brands Private Limited [w.e.f. 22 March 2017]

61. Jubilant Consumer Private Limited [w.e.f. 24 April 2016]

62. Juno Retail Private Limited

63. K. P. Singh HUF

64. Kapo Retail Private Limited

65. Kiko Cosmetics Retail Private Limited [formerly DBL 

Cosmetics Private Limited]

66. Kohinoor Real Estates Company*

67. KPS Family Trust [w.e.f. 11 March 2017]

68. Krishna Public Charitable Trust

69. Lal Chand Public Charitable Trust

70. Lion Brand Poultries

71. Madhukar Housing and Development Company*

72. Madhur Housing and Development Company*

73. Mallika Housing Company LLP

74. Megha Estates Private Limited

ii)  Other enterprises under the control of the key 

management personnel and their relatives: (Contd.)

75. Mohit Design Management Private Limited

76. Nachiketa Family Trust

77. Northern India Theatres Private Limited

78. Panchsheel Investment Company*

79. Paramhansa Yogananda Public Charitable Trust 

[w.e.f. 6 August 2015]

80. Parvati Estates LLP

81. Pia Pariwar Trust

82. Plaza Partners

83. Power Housing and Developers Private Limited

84. Prem Traders LLP

85. Prem’s Will Trust

86. Prima Associates Private Limited

87. Pushpak Builders and Developers Private Limited

88. R.R Family Trust

89. Raghvendra Public Charitable Trust

90. Raisina Agencies LLP

91. Rajdhani Investments & Agencies Private Limited

92. Realest Builders and Services Private Limited

93. Renkon Overseas Development Limited

94. Renkon Partners

95. Renuka Pariwar Trust

96. Rhea Retail Private Limited

97. Rod Retail Private Limited

98. Sabre Investment Advisor India Private Limited

99. Sabre Investment Consultants LLP

100. Sambhav Housing and Development Company*

101. Sarna Exports International

102. Sarna Exports Limited

103. Satish Gujral

104. Sidhant Housing and Development Company*

105. Singh Family Trust

106. Sketch Promoters and Developers Private Limited

107. Skills Academy Private Limited

108. Skills Education Private Limited [formerly A4e India 

Private Limited]

109. Skills for India

110. Smt. Savitri Devi Memorial Charitable Trust

111. Solakhse Housing and Construction Private Limited

112. Solange Retail Private Limited

113. Span Fashions Limited

114. Sudarshan Estates LLP

115. Sukh Sansar Housing Private Limited

116. Sunrise BPO Services Pte Ltd. [w.e.f. 29 March 2016]

117. Super Mart Two Property Management Services LLP
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ii)  Other enterprises under the control of the key 

management personnel and their relatives: (Contd.)

118. Trinity Housing and Construction Company*

119. Udyan Housing and Development Company*

120. Universal Management and Sales LLP

121. Urva Real Estate Developers Private Limited

122. Uttam Builders and Developers Private Limited

123. Uttam Real Estates Company*

124. Vishal Foods and Investments Private Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)

ii)  Other enterprises under the control of the key 

management personnel and their relatives: (Contd.)

125. Wagishwari Estates Private Limited

126. Willder Limited [till 7 October 2016]

127. Yashika Properties and Development Company*

128. Yogananda Films LLP [formerly Yogananda Films Private 

Limited]

129. Zigma Processing and Manufacturing Private Limited

* A private company with unlimited liability.

c) The following transaction were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business: 

(` in lakhs)

Description Key Management Personnel

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Salaries, wages and bonus (including Employee Shadow Option Scheme (cash settled options) 3,704.07 2,998.28

Post-employment benefits 88.61 69.56

Employee share based payment - 17.56

Total compensation 3,792.68 3,085.40

(` in lakhs)

Description Joint Ventures# Associates#

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Interest received 14,869.78 11,146.06 5,135.53 3,344.51

Expenses recovered 0.58 1,209.75 55.38 688.73

Expenses paid 199.74 300.63 - -

Interest paid 980.02 1,220.32 - -

Miscellaneous receipts (income) 4,835.20 4,450.68 - -

Royalty Income - - (691.68) (1,074.17)

Loans and advances given 5,567.00 20,377.80 9,639.00 20,106.00

Loans and advances refunded 1,750.00 3,712.00 - -

Loan taken - 1,450.00 - -

Loan refunded back - 6,358.00 - -

Investment purchased 2,250.14 14,473.00 - -

Investment sold 68,512.42 1,450.00 - -

Advance received under agreement to sell** - 185,000.00 - -

Advances Given 6,215.00 2,500.00 - -

(` in lakhs)

Description KMP and their relatives Enterprises over which KMP 

is able to exercise significant 

influence

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Interest received - - - 29.71

Rent and license fee received - - 2,055.53 2,009.84

Salary 97.24 197.24 - -

Expenses recovered - - 27.77 31.24

Expenses paid 18.54 7.72 1,392.01 1,603.75

Interest paid - - 152.91 16.84

Rent paid - - 430.71 372.02

Sale of fixed assets - 435.75 - 9.58

Miscellaneous receipts (income) 221.42 110.09 3,599.72 3,034.85
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Description KMP and their relatives Enterprises over which KMP 

is able to exercise significant 

influence

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Loans and advances refunded - - - 3,031.72

Advance received under agreement to sell** 3,226.63 3,017.05 1,768.10 9,273.88

Guarantees given (net) - - 51.75 1,938.00

d) Balance at the end of the year 

(` in lakhs)

Description Joint Ventures#

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Investments* 101,905.75 153,869.68 138,799.30

Advance received under agreement to sell** 38,512.50 38,512.50 38,512.50

Trade/amount payables (net) 6.29 8,204.83 7,054.56

Security deposit received - - 0.08

Loans and advances given 57,239.10 92,319.95 84,656.77

Trade receivables - 49.53 121.57

(` in lakhs)

Description Associates#

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Investments* 19,738.76 19,250.79 19,820.66

Loans and advances given 56,058.37 41,264.36 18,759.32

Trade/amount payables (net) 8,958.57 9,659.95 10,832.51

Trade receivables 19,738.76 19,250.79 19,820.66

(` in lakhs)

Description KMP and their relatives Enterprises over which KMP is able 

to exercise significant influence

31 March 

2017

31 March 

2016

1 April 

2015

31 March 

2017

31 March 

2016

1 April 

2015

Investments - - - 865.92 1,202.20 1,041.82

Earnest money and part payments under agreement 

to purchase land/ constructed properties

- - - 255.59 255.59 255.59

Advance received under agreement to sell** 23,997.44 20,771.43 18,621.88 54,561.34 52,793.25 43,519.38

Trade/amount payables (net) 1,025.57 881.56 1,101.02 41.87 87.21 51.69

Security deposit received - - - 879.84 1,215.82 968.41

Guarantees given - - - 3,057.00 3,005.00 1,067.00

Loans and advances given 2,300.00 2,300.00 2,300.00 942.25 1,132.25 5,031.15

Trade receivables 62.17 25.14 - 1,229.00 1,329.81 894.62

 * Excluding profits/(loss).

 **  Revenue has been recognized as per the percentage of completion method {refer accounting policy on revenue} on a project as a 

whole and not on individual basis.

 # Complete transactions have been reported before inter-company elimination.

(` in lakhs)
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e) Above includes the following material transactions: 

(` in lakhs)

Description Key management personnel

Transactions during the year Name of the Director 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Salaries, wages and bonus 

(including Employee Shadow 

Option Scheme (cash settled 

options)

Dr. K.P. Singh 680.86 437.38

Mr. Rajiv Singh 548.73 442.11

Ms. Pia Singh - 29.61

Mr. Rajeev Talwar 623.62 690.63

Mr. Mohit Gujral 1,520.03 1,510.16

Post-employment benefits Mr. Rajiv Singh 9.48 4.90

Mr. Rajeev Talwar 12.38 7.95

Mr. Mohit Gujral 26.97 21.28

Employee share based payment Mr. Rajeev Talwar - 17.56

(` in lakhs)

 Description  Joint Ventures#

Transactions during the year Name of the entity 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Interest income YG Realty Private Limited 956.25 628.61

DLF Midtown Private Limited 1,446.93 411.74

DLF Southern Homes Private Limited [till 20 March 2017] 2,263.06 1,692.18

Joyous Housing Limited 6,820.45 5,371.67

DLF Southern Towns Private Limited [till 20 March 2017] 2,818.82 2,324.95

Expenses recovered DLF Southern Homes Private Limited [till 20 March 2017] - 318.85

DLF Homes Rajapura Private Limited [till 20 March 2017] - 510.33

DLF Garden City Indore Private Limited [w.e.f. 21 March 2017] 0.11 -

DLF Southern Towns Private Limited [till 20 March 2017] 0.47 271.42

Expenses paid Designplus Associates Services Private Limited 199.74 300.63

Interest paid DLF Homes Rajapura Private Limited [till 20 March 2017] 962.68 1,199.53

Miscellaneous income YG Realty Private Limited 4,780.57 4,338.78

Loans and advances given DLF Southern Homes Private Limited [till 20 March 2017] 2,609.00 15,017.00

DLF Southern Towns Private Limited [till 20 March 2017] 2,864.00 5,212.00

Loans and advances refunded DLF Southern Homes Private Limited [till 20 March 2017] 1,750.00 2,400.00

DLF Southern Towns Private Limited [till 20 March 2017] - 970.00

Loan taken DLF Homes Rajapura Private Limited [till 20 March 2017] - 1,450.00

Loan refunded back DLF Homes Rajapura Private Limited [till 20 March 2017] - 6,176.00

Investment purchased DLF Midtown Private Limited 750.05 10,669.75

DLF Urban Private Limited 1,500.09 3,553.25

Investment sold YG Realty Private Limited 2,250.00 1,450.00

DLF Southern Homes Private Limited [till 20 March 2017] 56,788.16 -

DLF Homes Rajapura Private Limited [till 20 March 2017] 9,474.26 -

Advance received under 

agreement to sell**

DLF Midtown Private Limited - 138,750.00

DLF Urban Private Limited - 46,250.00

Advances given (net) Joyous Housing Limited 6,215.00 2,500.00
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(` in lakhs)

 Description  Associates#

Transactions during the year Name of the entity 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Interest income DLF Homes Panchkula Private Limited 5,135.53 3,344.51

Expenses recovered DLF Homes Panchkula Private Limited 55.38 688.73

Royalty Income DLF Homes Panchkula Private Limited (691.68) (1,074.17)

Loans and advances given DLF Homes Panchkula Private Limited 9,639.00 20,106.00

(` in lakhs)

Description Key Management Personnel (KMP) and their relatives

Transactions during the year Name of the Director/ Relative 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Salary and wages Ms. Renuka Talwar 97.24 197.24

Sale of fixed assets Dr. K.P. Singh, Mr Rajiv Singh, Ms. Renuka Talwar,

Ms. Pia Singh

- 435.75

Miscellaneous income Dr. K.P. Singh - 39.15

Mr. Rajiv Singh 84.57 -

Ms. Renuka Talwar 33.77 56.03

Ms. Pia Singh 20.44 14.92

Mr. Dhiraj Sarna 82.49 -

Expenses paid Mr. Dhiraj Sarna 18.54 -

Mr. Mohit Gujral - 7.72

Advance received under 

agreement to sell**

Mr. Dhiraj Sarna - 767.95

Ms. Pia Singh 1,375.89 1,478.84

Ms. Anushka Singh 1,068.94 435.99

Mr. Mohit Gujral 780.62 333.09

(` in lakhs)

Description Enterprises over which KMP is able to exercise significant influence

Transactions during the year Name of the entity 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Interest income DLF Brands Limited - 29.71

Rent received Diana Retail Private Limited 235.39 383.79

DLF Brands Limited 518.48 594.68

Rhea Retail Private Limited 395.93 263.05

Ferragamo Retail India Private Limited 379.02 379.12

Expenses recovered DLF Building & Services Private Limited 16.44 14.15

DLF Brands Limited 0.89 9.91

Diana Retail Private Limited 2.87 -

Rhea Retail Private Limited 3.02 2.03

Ferragamo Retail India Private Limited 3.73 3.60

Expenses paid DLF Foundation 685.00 1,040.00

Renkon Partners 178.56 275.97

DLF Commercial Enterprises 159.22 150.23

Atria Partners 187.46 107.15
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Description Enterprises over which KMP is able to exercise significant influence

Transactions during the year Name of the entity 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Interest paid Diana Retail Private Limited 123.64 1.66

DLF Brands Limited 5.54 9.29

Rhea Retail Private Limited 1.57 4.49

Ferragamo Retail India Private Limited 19.86 -

Rent paid DLF Q.E.C. Educational Charitable Trust 227.52 169.60

DLF Q.E.C. Medical Charitable Trust 69.22 66.28

Renkon Partners 53.32 52.98

DLF Commercial Enterprises 40.26 40.00

Sale of fixed assets DLF Building & Services Private Limited - 9.58

Miscellaneous income DLF Brands Limited 198.67 236.06

Renkon Partners 1,009.18 1,121.18

Urva Real Estate Developers Private Limited 664.71 -

Atria Partners 549.87 463.44

DLF Commercial Enterprises 537.13 536.11

Loan received back DLF Brands Limited - 3,031.72

Advance received/ under 

agreement to sell**

Realest Builders & Services Private Limited 380.26 655.35

Urva Real Estate Developers Private Limited - 7,979.20

A.S.G. Realcon Private Limited 380.26 4.04

Jhandewalan Ancillaries LLP 205.11 262.23

Raisina Agencies LLP 248.55 138.91

AGS Buildtech Private Limited 380.26 4.04

Guarantees given (net) DLF Brands Limited 51.75 1,938.00

(` in lakhs)

Description Joint Ventures# 

Balance at the end of the year Name of the entity 31 March 

2017

31 March 

2016

1 April 

2015

Investments in shares YG Realty Private Limited 44,665.34 39,024.15 34,685.37

DLF Southern Homes Private Limited [till 20 March 2017] - 56,788.16 56,788.16

DLF Southern Towns Private Limited [till 20 March 2017] - 19,279.52 19,356.16

Joyous Housing Limited 6,109.56 6,110.26 6,110.26

Designplus Associates Services Private Limited 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00

DLF Midtown Private Limited 33,676.76 11,227.63 -

DLF Urban Private Limited 12,453.09 3,742.36 -

Advance received under 

agreement to sell**

YG Realty Private Limited 38,512.50 38,512.50 38,512.50

Trade/amount payables (net) SC Hospitality Private Limited [formerly Saket Courtyard 

Hospitalty Private Limited]

- - 6,997.71

Designplus Associates Services Private Limited 6.29 28.32 -

DLF Homes Rajapura Private Limited [till 20 March 2017] - 7,958.00 -

(` in lakhs)
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Description Joint Ventures# 

Balance at the end of the year Name of the entity 31 March 

2017

31 March 

2016

1 April 

2015

Security deposit received SC Hospitality Private Limited [formerly Saket Courtyard 

Hospitalty Private Limited]

- - 0.08

Loans and advances given SC Hospitality Private Limited [formerly Saket Courtyard 

Hospitalty Private Limited]

- - 19,752.60

YG Realty Private Limited 938.49 558.27 -

DLF Southern Homes Private Limited [till 20 March 2017] - 21,087.48 5,320.62

DLF Southern Towns Private Limited [till 20 March 2017] - 25,212.75 21,581.08

Joyous Housing Limited 53,256.26 40,871.09 33,509.26

DLF Midtown Private Limited 1,703.60 401.36 -

Trade receivables SC Hospitality Private Limited [formerly Saket Courtyard 

Hospitalty Private Limited]

- - 32.06

(` in lakhs)

Description Associates#

Balance at the end of the year Name of the entity 31 March 

2017

31 March 

2016

1 April 

2015

Investments in shares DLF Homes Panchkula Private Limited 9,738.76 9,250.79 9,820.66

Arizona Globalservices Private Limited 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00

Loans and advances given DLF Homes Panchkula Private Limited 56,058.37 41,264.36 18,759.32

Trade receivables DLF Homes Panchkula Private Limited 8,958.57 9,659.95 10,832.51

(` in lakhs)

Description Enterprises over which KMP is able to exercise significant influence

Balance at the end of the year Name of the entity 31 March 

2017

31 March 

2016

1 April 

2015

Advance received under 

agreement to sell**

Ms. Anushka Singh 3,078.86 2,009.92 1,573.93

Ms. Pia Singh 6,266.00 4,890.11 3,425.48

Mr. Mohit Gujral 4,953.57 4,172.96 3,839.86

Mr. Dhiraj Sarna 8,288.56 8,287.99 7,520.21

Loans and advances given Mr. Mohit Gujral 2,300.00 2,300.00 2,300.00

Trade receivables Ms. Renuka Talwar 38.66 8.89 -

Ms. Pia Singh 23.51 17.08 -

Trade payables/ amounts 

payable (net) 

Dr. K.P. Singh 349.64 250.21 178.29

Mr. Rajiv Singh 350.09 256.35 256.91

Ms. Pia Singh 0.84 0.83 100.82

Ms. Renuka Talwar - 100.00 100.00

Mr. T.C. Goyal - - 190.00

Mr. Rajeev Talwar 325.00 275.00 275.00

(` in lakhs)
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(` in lakhs)

Description Enterprises over which KMP is able to exercise significant influence

Balance at the end of the year Name of the entity 31 March 

2017

31 March 

2016

1 April 

2015

Investments* DLF Brands Limited 848.80 1,185.08 1,024.80

Earnest money and part 

payments under agreement 

to purchase land/ constructed 

properties

DLF Building & Services Private Limited 221.43 221.43 221.43

Advance received under 

agreement to sell**

Realest Builders & Services Private Limited 5,593.57 5,213.31 4,557.96

Urva Real Estate Developers Private Limited 31,373.98 31,373.98 23,394.79

Trade payables/ amounts 

payable

DLF Commercial Enterprises 9.99 8.53 14.61

Atria Partners 11.06 5.18 8.34

Renkon Partners 12.25 13.59 5.75

DLF Q.E.C. Medical Charitable Trust 0.58 15.27 0.20

Juno Retail Private Limited 5.32 5.11 5.11

DLF Q.E.C. Educational Charitable Trust 0.01 36.67 1.17

Security deposit received DLF Brands Limited 181.29 210.79 163.29

Rhea RetailPrivate Limited 193.88 120.97 137.68

Diana Retail Private Limited 70.58 435.58 187.73

Kiko Cosmetics Retail Private Limited [formerly DBL 

Cosmetics Private Limited]

68.23 - -

Ferragamo Retail India Private Limited [till 19 December 2016] - 199.86 200.96

Guarantees given (net) DLF Brands Limited 3,057.00 3,005.25 1,067.00

Loans and advances given DLF Brands Limited 42.23 42.23 4,131.13

Gujral Design Plus Overseas Private Limited 900.00 900.00 900.00

Trade receivables Rhea Retail Private Limited 376.38 184.55 152.01

DLF Brands Limited 312.41 463.29 29.11

Eros Retail Private Limited 245.69 340.55 447.97

 * Excluding profits.

 ** Revenue has been recognized as per the percentage of completion method {refer accounting policy on revenue} on a project as a 

whole and not on individual basis.

 # Complete transactions have been reported before inter-company elimination.

 49. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(A) Details of contingent liabilities 

(` in lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

A. Under litigation

I Demand in excess of provisions (pending in appeals):

 Income-tax 683,328.51 553,184.44 570,001.60

 Other taxes  79,959.26 90,909.01 32,569.10

II Claims against the Group (including unasserted claims) not acknowledged 

as debts* 

130,619.57 124,664.96 108,356.29

B. Others

I Guarantees on behalf of third parties 3,062.25 3,010.50 179,015.00

II Liabilities under export obligations in EPCG scheme 4,562.35 1,230.64 1,209.44

 * Interest and claims by customers/suppliers may be payable as and when the outcome of the related matters are finally determined 

and hence not been included above. Management based on legal advice and historical trends, believes that no material liability will 

devolve on the Group in respect of these matters.
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(B) Capital and other commitments 

(` in lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

I Capital commitments (for property plant and equipment’s and investment 

properties)

403,639.30 420,249.08 403,262.99

II Other commitments 9,046.40 17,618.46 27,219.47

III The Group has undertaken to provide continued financial support to its joint ventures and associates as and when 

required. 

IV Some commitment regarding payments under development agreements with certain third party entities with which development 

agreements are in place.

 50. CERTAIN OTHER MATTERS PENDING IN LITIGATION WITH COURTS/APPELLATE AUTHORITIES

a) (i) The Competition Commission of India (CCI) on a complaint filed by the Belaire/Park Place owners Association had passed orders 

dated 12 August 2011 and 29 August 2011 wherein the CCI had imposed a penalty of ` 63,000.00 lakhs on DLF Limited (“DLF” or 

“the Company”) or, restraining DLF from formulating and imposing allegedly unfair conditions with buyers in Gurugram and further 

ordered to suitably modify the alleged unfair conditions on its buyers.

  The said orders of CCI were challenged by DLF on several grounds by filing appeals before the Competition Appellate Tribunal 

(COMPAT). The COMPAT, pending hearing and till final orders had granted stay on demand of penalty of ` 63,000.00 lakhs 

imposed by CCI.

  COMPAT vide its order dated 19 May 2014 accepted the arguments of DLF that since the agreements were entered into prior to 

coming into force of Section 4 of the Competition Act, the clauses of the agreements entered in 2006-07 could not be looked into 

for establishing contravention of Section 4 of the Competition Act, however COMPAT held that the Company is a dominant player in 

Gurugram being the relevant market and has abused its dominant position in relation to certain actions which is violative of Section 

4 of the Competition Act and has accordingly upheld the penalty imposed by CCI. 

  COMPAT further held that CCI could not have directed modifications of the Agreement as the power to modify the agreement 

under Section 27 is only in relation to Section 3 and cannot be applied for any action in contravention of Section 4 of the 

Competition Act.  

  The Company has filed an Appeal in the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India against the order dated 19 May 2014 passed by the 

COMPAT. The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India vide order dated 27 August 2014 admitted the Appeal and directed the Company to 

deposit penalty of ` 63,000.00 lakhs in the Court.

  In compliance of the order, the Company has deposited ` 63,000.00 lakhs with the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India.

  The appeals have been listed for arguments before Hon’ble Supreme Court of India.

  Based on the advice of the independent legal counsels, the management believes that there is a reasonably strong likelihood of 

succeeding before the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India. Pending the final decisions on the above matter, no adjustment has been 

made in these standalone financial statements.

 (ii) The order was passed by CCI on 14 May 2015, against one of the Subsidiary Company relating to New Town Heights Project where 

CCI has directed the Company to cease and desist in implementation of the terms and conditions of Apartment Buyer Agreement 

which is found to be unfair and abusive.

  No penalty has been imposed by CCI. The Subsidiary Companies have filed the Appeals before COMPAT against the said Order 

dated 14 May 2015 and Appeals were dismissed by COMPAT.  The Subsidiary Companies against the order passed by COMPAT 

have filed Appeals before Hon’ble Supreme Court.

  The appeals have been listed for arguments before Hon’ble Supreme Court of India.

b) During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Company and two of its subsidiary companies received judgments from the Hon’ble 

High Court of Punjab and Haryana cancelling the sale deeds of land relating to two IT SEZ/IT Park Projects in Gurugram. The 

Company and the subsidiary companies filed Special Leave Petitions (SLPs) challenging the orders in the Hon’ble Supreme Court 

of India.

 The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India has admitted the matters and stayed the operation of the impugned judgments till further orders in 

both the cases.

 Based on the advice of the independent legal counsels, the management believes that there is a reasonably strong likelihood of 

succeeding before the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India. Pending the final decisions on the above matter, no adjustment has been made 

in these consolidated financial statements.
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c) (i) Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) had issued a Show Cause Notice (SCN) dated 25 June 2013 under Sections 11(1), 

11(4), 11A and 11B of the SEBI Act, 1992 (“the SEBI Act”) read with clause 17.1 of the SEBI (Disclosure & Investor Protection) 

Guidelines, 2000 (“DIP Guidelines”) and Regulation 111 of SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 

(“ICDR Regulations”) and levelled certain allegations in the same.

  The Company filed its reply with SEBI, placed written submissions and participated in the hearings conducted by the Hon’ble Whole 

Time Member, in which it replied to each allegation levelled in the said Show Cause Notice (SCN).

  The Hon’ble Whole Time Member however rejected the reply filed by the Company and vide its order dated 10 October 2014  

restrained the Company and six others from accessing the securities market and prohibiting them from buying, selling or otherwise 

dealing in securities, directly or indirectly, in any manner, whatsoever,  for a period of three years.

  The Company has filed an appeal against the said order before Securities Appellate Tribunal (SAT) vide majority order dated 

13 March 2015 allowed all the appeals and the impugned order passed by SEBI has been quashed and set aside.

  SEBI has filed a statutory appeal under Section 15Z of SEBI Act before the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India. 

  On 24 April 2015, the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India admitted the appeal (‘Appeal’) filed by SEBI and issued notice on interim 

application. No stay has been granted by Hon’ble Supreme Court of India in favour of SEBI.

  SEBI had filed an application stating that proposed sale of Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (‘CCPS’) in DLF Cyber 

City Developers Limited, one of the unlisted subsidiary of the Company, by the promoters, to third party Institutional Investors 

should not be allowed during the pendency of the appeal and have sought stay from the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India on the 

proposed transactions.  The Hon’ble Supreme Court did not pass any order and has kept the application to be heard along with 

the Appeal.

 (ii) SEBI also issued a SCN dated 28 August 2013 under Sections 15HA and 15HB of the SEBI Act, 1992 and under  Rule 4 of the SEBI 

(Procedure for Holding Inquiry and Imposing Penalties by Adjudicating Officer) Rules, 1995 (“Adjudication Rules”), hearing on which 

has been completed and the Company has filed its written synopsis/submissions.

  By way of orders dated 26 February 2015, the Adjudicating Officer of SEBI imposed penalties upon the Company, some 

of its Directors, officer, its three subsidiaries and their Directors under Section 15HA and under Section 15HB of the 

SEBI Act, 1992.

  The Company, its Directors, officer, its three subsidiaries and their Directors have filed appeal before SAT impugning the order dated 

26 February 2015 passed by an Adjudicating Officer of SEBI. The Appeal is listed before SAT and in its order dated 15 April 2015, 

SEBI has undertaken not to enforce the orders dated 26 February 2015 during pendency of the appeal.

  The appeals have been listed for hearing before SAT.

  The management of the Company and its legal advisors believe that it has not acted in contravention of law either during its 

initial public offer or otherwise. The Company has full faith in the judicial process and is confident of vindication of its stand in 

the near future.

 51. LEASES

A) Operating leases – Assets taken on lease

 The group leases various offices, parking spaces and retail stores under non-cancellable operating leases with different period. The 

leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases are renegotiated. Contractual 

lease expense are summarised as below.

(` in lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Not later than one year 4,719.14 4,768.06

Later than one year but not later than five years 8,667.92 8,319.20

More than five years 29,789.44 28,345.57

Lease payment made during the year recognized in the statement of profit and loss 8,333.07 9,405.62

Sub-lease payment received recognized in the statement of profit and loss 359.65 256.68

 Figures disclosed above are gross of eliminations.
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 Finance leases – Assets taken on lease

 The Group has taken certain plant and machinery on lease for energy generation purposes. Carrying value (of assets taken on lease) 

as at 31 March 2017 ` Nil (previous year 31 March 2016 ` 31.01 lakhs). Contractual lease expense are summarised as below: 

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Minimum lease payments Present value of lease Payments

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Not later than one year - 68.70 - 45.95

Later than one year but not later than five years - 196.75 - 158.64

More than five years - - - -

Total - 265.45 - 204.59

Less: Finance charges - 60.85 - -

Present value of minimum lease payments - 204.60 - -

 Figures disclosed above are gross of eliminations.

B) Operating leases – Assets given on lease

 The Company has leased out office and mall premises under non-cancelable operating leases. The contractual future minimum lease 

related receivables in respect of these leases are:

(` in lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Not later than one year 158,531.95 143,485.31

Later than one year but not later than five years 96,664.48 86,394.44

More than five years 32,433.43 23,281.53

Total 287,629.86 253,161.28

 Figures disclosed above are gross of eliminations.

 52.  SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2006 (ESOP)

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group had announced an Employee Stock Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) for all eligible 

employees of the Company, its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. Under the Scheme, 17,000,000 equity shares have been 

earmarked to be granted under the Scheme and the same will vest as follows:

Block I Block II Block III

Year 2 Year 4 Year 6

10% of the total grant 30% of the total grant 60% of the total grant

Pursuant to the above Scheme, the employee will have the option to exercise the right within three years from the date of vesting of shares 

at ` 2 per share, being its exercise price.

Options are granted under the plan for the consideration of ` 2 per share and carry no dividend or voting rights. When exercisable, each 

option is convertible into one equity share. For the options which were vested before 31 March 2015, using the Ind AS transition exemption 

(as explained in the significant accounting policies no. 5(o)) the expense related to options is arrived at using intrinsic value of the shares 

on the date of grant. For options which were vested after 31 March 2015, the expense related to options is arrived at using fair value of the 

options on the date of grant.

Share options outstanding (tranche wise) have the following exercise prices:

Grant date Exercise price (`) Share options 

31 March 2017

Share options 

31 March 2016

Share options 

1 April 2015

1 July 2007 2 3,734,057 3,734,057 3,734,057

10 October 2007 2 308,077 308,077 308,077

1 July 2008 2 1,645,520 1,645,520 1,645,520

10 October 2008 2 160,059 160,059 160,059

1 July 2009 2 3,355,404 3,355,404 3,355,404

10 October 2009 2 588,819 588,819 588,819
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Share options outstanding at the end of the year (tranche wise) have the following exercise prices:

Grant date Exercise price (`) Share options 

31 March 2017

Share options 

31 March 2016

Share options 

1 April 2015

1 July 2007 2 3,450 68,650 239,050

10 October 2007 2 6,220 16,240 44,840

1 July 2008 2 31,672 52,748 408,466

10 October 2008 2 4,992 4,992 59,134

1 July 2009 2 207,287 331,327 1,434,737

10 October 2009 2 213,054 346,679 470,057

466,675 820,636 2,656,284

2017

Particulars Stock options 

(numbers)

Range of exercise 

prices (`)

Weighted-average 

exercise prices (`)

Weighted-average remaining 

contractual life (years)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 820,636

(2,656,284)

2

(2)

-

(-)

-

(-)

Add: Granted during the year  -

(-)

-

(-)

-

 (-)

-

(-)

Less: Forfeited during the year 332

 (21,722)

-

(-)

-

(-)

-

(-)

Less: Exercised during the year 289,118

 (1,797,600)

2

(2)

2

(2)

-

(-)

 Less: Lapsed during the year 64,511

(16,326)

-

(-)

-

(-)

-

(-)

Outstanding at the end of the year 466,675

 (820,636)

2

(2)

2

(2)

-

 (0.60)

Exercisable at the end of the year 466,675

 (820,636)

2

(2)

2

(2)

-

(-)

Figures in brackets pertain to previous year.

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of options during the year ended 31 March 2017 was:

Grant date 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

1 July 2007 127.35 121.94

10 October 2007 153.89 121.47

1 July 2008 128.65 122.19

10 October 2008 - 116.51

1 July 2009 126.41 110.70

10 October 2009 132.02 102.06

The fair value of the options granted is determined on the date of the grant using the “Black-Scholes option pricing model” with the following 

assumptions, as certified by an independent valuer:

Grant I Grant ll Grant lll Grant IV Grant V Grant VI

Dividend yield (%) 0.28 0.28 0.57 0.73 0.86 0.64

Expected life (number of years) 6.50 6.50 5.50 5.50 5.50 5.50

Risk free interest rate (%) 8.37 8.09 9.46 8.17 6.75 7.26

Volatility (%) 82.30 82.30 52.16 59.70 86.16 81.87

The expected volatility was determined based on historical volatility data of the Holding Company’s shares listed on the National Stock 

Exchange of India Limited.

The Group has recognized expense from option plan of ` Nil (previous year ` 118.45 lakhs) during the year as proportionate cost.
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Employee Shadow Option Scheme (Cash settled options)

Under the Employee Shadow Option Scheme (the ‘Scheme’), employees are entitled to get cash compensation based on the average 

market price of equity share upon exercise of shadow option on a future date. As per the Scheme, Shadow options will vest as follows:

Tranche Date of Grant * Vesting at the 

end of/during 

year 1

Vesting at 

the end of/

during year 2

Vesting at 

the end of/

during year 3

Vesting at 

the end of/

during year 4

Vesting at 

the end of/

during year 5

Vesting at 

the end of/

during year 7

I 1 July 2007 - 50% - 50% - -

II 1 September 2007 - 50% - 50% - -

III 1 July 2008 - 50% 50% - - -

IV 10 October 2008 - 50% 50% - - -

V 1 July 2009 - 100% - - - -

VI 1 August 2010 - - - - - 100%

VII 1 November 2012 33.33% 33.33% 33.34% - - -

VIII 1 August 2013 - - 33.34% - 66.66% -

b) Details of outstanding options and the expenses recognized under the Employee Shadow Option Scheme are as under:

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Outstanding shadow options (no.) 732,238 779,857 811,603

Exercise price (`) 2 2 2

Average market price (`) 144.61 107.97 156.95

Fair value of shadow option (`) 142.61 105.97 154.95

Total expense charged to statement of profit and loss (` in lakhs) 407.25 (112.80) 235.16

Liability as at the end of the year (` in lakhs) 1,052.36 645.12 792.85

*  For tranche I & II 50% options have already been vested in the financial year ended 31 March 2010 and remaining 50% vested in 

financial year ended 31 March 2012. For tranche III & IV 50% options vested in the financial year ended 31 March 2011 and remaining 

50% vested in financial year ended 31 March 2012. For tranche V the options vested in financial year ended 31 March 2012. For 

tranche VII 33.33% vested in financial year ended 31 March 2014 and 33.33% vested in 31 March 2015 and remaining 50% vested in 

financial year ended 31 March 2016. For tranche VIII 33.34% vested in current financial year. Hence entire tranche VI and tranche VIII 

are disclosed above.

 53.  SEGMENT INFORMATION

In line with the provisions of Ind AS 108 - operating segments and basis the review of operations being done by the Board and the 

management, the operations of the Group fall under colonization and real estate business, which is considered to be the only reportable 

segment. The Group derives its major revenues from construction and development of real estate projects and its customers are widespread. 

The Group is operating in India which is considered as a single geographical segment.

 54. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

(` in lakhs)

S. No. Particulars 31 March 2017 

Profit/(loss)

31 March 2016 

Profit/(loss)

1. Sale of cinema operations (note a) 42,122.00 -

2. Impairment loss of capital project assets (note b) (2,097.00) (1,604.09)

3. Loss on sale of assets/project (note c) (4,225.00) (4,754.48)

4. Impairment in value of assets held for sale (note d) - (1,500.00)

5. Profit on sale of Investment in Associate Companies (note e) 10,751.03 -

6. Loss on account of flood (note f) (3,491.00) -

7. Loss on account of dilution of stake in joint ventures (note g) - (11,808.72)

8. Compensation paid (note h) (133.62) -

Net Profit/(loss) as per consolidated statement of profit and loss 42,926.41 (19,667.29)
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a) During the year ended 31 March 2016, DLF Utilities Limited (‘DUL’), a subsidiary company decided to exit the cinema business being 

the non-core business activity considering other operations of the Company. Consequently, on 9 June 2015 and 8 June 2016, DUL 

has entered into a definitive agreements with PVR Limited and Cinepolis India Private Limited, respectively for transfer of its cinema 

business on ‘slump sale’ basis as defined under Section 2(42C) of Income-tax Act, 1961 for a consideration of ` 43,300.00 lakhs and 

` 6,450.00 lakhs, respectively. All the regulatory approvals were duly received during the current year and transaction was effected 

on 2 May 2016 and 1 September 2016, respectively. The resultant profit before tax of ` 42,122.00 lakhs has been classified under 

exceptional item in these consolidated financial statement.

b) During the year ended 31 March 2017, DUL, a subsidiary company has recognized impairment of ` 2,097.00 lakhs (31 March 2016 

` 1,604.09 lakhs) on account of impairment of certain assets under fixed assets/capital work-in-progress, based on their estimated 

realizable value thereof.

c) During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Holding Company has sold certain assets (having the carrying value of ` 5,370.92 lakhs) for 

` 1,145.92 lakhs and has recognized a loss of ` 4,225.00 lakhs.

 During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Holding Company has sold one land parcel (having the carrying value of ` 15,854.48) for 

` 11,100.00 lakhs and has recorded a loss of ` 4,754.48 lakhs.

d) During the year ended 31 March 2016, the written down value of certain items of property, plant and equipment of DUL, classified under 

plant and machinery, including gas engine power generators and related machineries of gross value ` 3,239.78 lakhs, accumulated 

depreciation of ` 1,256.96 lakhs and written down value of ` 1,982.82 lakhs pertaining to DUL were impaired by ` 1,500.00 lakhs.

e) DLF Home Developers  Limited (DHDL), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, had a Joint Venture Agreement with the investors 

for development of seven residential projects in the cities of Bengaluru, Chennai, Kochi and Indore.

 It was decided to concentrate on select projects in certain micro market and accordingly, it was jointly decided with the Investor to realign 

the current shareholding arrangement of DHDL in the JV companies in order to maintain continued focus on future development of various 

projects. Consequently, with the realignment of the current shareholding in the JV companies during the year ended 31 March 2017:

 i) DHDL has sold (i) 19,428,879 equity shares and 3,400,000 Preference Shares of  DLF Southern Homes Private Limited for 

` 54,300.00 lakhs and (ii) 13,768 equity shares of  DLF  Homes Rajapura Private Limited (Rajapura) for ` 10,394.00 lakhs. Besides 

this, DHDL has opted buy back of 4,283 equity shares of Rajapura for ` 3,233.00 lakhs. Accordingly, DHDL ceased to hold any stake 

now in these two companies. The resultant profit before tax of `10,751.00 lakhs has been classified as exceptional items in these 

consolidated financial statements.

 ii) DHDL has purchased 33,345 equity  shares of  DLF Southern Towns Private Limited for ` 48,000.00 lakhs and  30,571 equity shares 

of  DLF  Garden City Indore Private Limited for `17,000.00 lakhs, consequently the said Companies have become wholly-owned 

subsidiaries of DHDL w.e.f. March 21, 2017 and accordingly consolidated in these consolidated financial statements.

f) The Group has recognized loss of ` 3,491.00 lakhs on account of assets damaged by floods in Chennai.

g) During the year ended 31 March 2016, compulsorily convertible debentures (‘CCDs’) of DLF Garden City Indore Private Limited, DLF 

Homes Rajapura Private Limited and DLF Southern Towns Private Limited became due for conversion by investors into equity shares. 

Pursuant to conversion by the DLF Home Developers Limited (wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and conversion by third party 

investors into equity shares, the Group has recognized loss of ̀  11,808.72 lakh on account of dilution of stake in these joint venture entities.

h) Loss on account of compensation paid to GAIL (India) Limited for termination of contract.

55. Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“MSMED Act, 2006”) is as under:

(` in lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

i) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any 

supplier as at the end of each accounting year;

165.07 309.93 278.29

ii) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16, along with the 

amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during 

each accounting year;

Nil Nil Nil

iii) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 

payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 

year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006;

Nil Nil Nil

iv) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 

accounting year; and

Nil Nil Nil

v) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 

succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually 

paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible 

expenditure under Section 23.

Nil Nil Nil
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The above disclosure has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the 

Group. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

56. a) As already reported, in the earlier year, disallowance of SEZ profits u/s 80IAB of the Income-tax Act, 1961 were made by the Income 

Tax Authorities during the assessments of the Company and its certain subsidiaries raising demands amounting to ` 1,056.00 lakhs for 

Assessment Year 2014-15; ` 7,750.00 lakhs for the Assessment Year 2013-14, ` 27,305.55 lakhs for the Assessment Year 2011-12; 

` 30,578.57 lakhs for the Assessment Year 2010-11; ` 138,713.13 lakhs for the Assessment Year 2009-10 and ` 164,341.12 lakhs for 

the Assessment Year 2008-09, respectively.

  The Company and its respective subsidiary companies had filed appeals before the appropriate appellate authorities against these 

demands for the said assessment years. In certain cases partial/full relief has been granted by the Appellate Authorities (CIT Appeal & 

Income Tax Appellate Tribunal). The Company, its respective subsidiaries and Income Tax Department have further preferred appeals 

before the higher authorities in those cases.

  Based on the advice from independent tax experts and development on the appeals, the management is confident that additional tax 

so demanded will not be sustained on completion of the appellate proceedings and accordingly, pending the decision by the appellate 

authorities, no provision has been made in these consolidated financial statements.

 b) The petitions were filed before the Hon’ble Punjab & Haryana High Court challenging the action of the Haryana Government to 

acquire the land belonging to Gram Panchayat of village Wazirabad, District Gurugram for public purpose and thereafter selling the 

same to the Company, seeking directions from the Court for quashing of the acquisition proceedings under Section 4 & 6 of the Land 

Acquising Act, 1894 dated 8 August 2003 and 20 January 2004.

  The Petitioners therein also sought quashing of the award dated 19 January 2006 and the regular letter of allotment (RLA) dated 

9 February 2010 issued in favour of the Company for 350.715 acres of land.

  The Hon’ble Punjab & Haryana High Court, vide its final order dated 3 September 2014, while upholding the acquisition of land 

has however disapproved the allotment in favour of the Company. The Hon’ble High Court passed an order to keep the RLA dated 

9 February 2010 issued in favour of the Company in abeyance and further directed the Haryana State Industrial and Infrastructure 

Development Corporation (‘HSIIDC’) to initiate fresh allotment process for higher returns in respect of the land in question with an 

option to State to revive the RLA in case no better bid is quoted by the public at large.

  The Company has filed Special Leave Petition before the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India challenging the judgment dated 3 September 

2014 passed by the Hon’ble Punjab & Haryana High Court. The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India issued notice to the Respondents 

and directed status quo to be maintained by the parties.

  Based on the advice of the independent legal counsels, the management believes that there is a reasonably strong likelihood of 

succeeding before the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India. Pending the final decisions on the above matter, no adjustment has been 

made in these consolidated financial statement.

57.  a) By notification dated 8 October 2015, it was inter alia notified to the Stock Exchanges that the Board of Directors of the Company had 

approved the proposal for promoter group companies namely Rajdhani investments & Agencies Private Limited, Buland Consultants 

and Investments Private Limited, Sidhant Housing and Development Company (“CCPS Holders”) to sell 15,96,99,999 Cumulative 

Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (“CCPS”) of DLF Cyber City Developers Limited (“DCCDL”) (which would result in 40% 

equity shareholding in DCCDL upon conversion of the CCPS) to unrelated third party investor(s) (the “CCPS Sale Transaction”) 

subject to certain conditions.

 b) In view of the timelines of the CCPS Sale Transaction and based on the recommendations of the Audit Committee, the CCPS Holders 

have conveyed to the Board of Directors of DCCDL and the Company that they are agreeable to defer conversion of the CCPS 

until 18 March 2018 on the same terms and conditions i.e. coupon rate of 0.01% per annum. The Company as the 100% equity 

shareholder of DCCDL has granted its consent for the said extension.

58. Some of the entities of the Group, have entered into business development agreements with some entities for the acquisitions/

aggregation of land parcels. As per these agreements, the respective entities have acquired sole irrevocable development rights in 

identified land which are acquired/or in the final stages of being acquired by these entities. In terms of accounting policy on inventory 

the amount paid to these entities pursuant to the above agreements for acquiring development rights are classified under inventory as 

development rights.

59. All loans, guarantees and securities as disclosed in respective notes are provided for business purposes.

60. In the opinion of the Board of Directors, current assets, loans and advances have a value on realization in the ordinary course of 

business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the balance sheet and provisions for all known/ expected liabilities 

have been made.
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61. Additional information as required by paragraph 2 of the general instructions for preparation of consolidated financial 

statements to Schedule III to the Act:

Name of Entity Net assets i.e. total assets 

minus total liabilities

Share in profit or (loss)

 As % of 

consolidated 

net assets 

` in lakhs As % of 

consolidated 

net assets 

` in lakhs

Holding Company

 DLF Limited 64.38%  1,596,970.65 68.82%  48,245.29 

Subsidiary Companies

 Indian subsidiaries

 Aadarshini Real Estate Developers Private Limited 0.00%  (7.74) 0.00%  (0.95)

 Abhigyan Builders & Developers Private Limited -0.02%  (440.59) -0.53%  (371.23)

 Abhiraj Real Estate Private Limited -0.03%  (864.94) 0.00%  (1.93)

 Adeline Builders & Developers Private Limited 0.00%  (8.11) 0.00%  (1.53)

 Americus Real Estate Private Limited -0.44%  (10,888.74) -0.01%  (3.67)

 Amishi Builders & Developers Private Limited -0.15%  (3,624.80) -0.10%  (67.85)

 Angelina Real Estates Private Limited 0.03%  669.86 0.27%  190.15 

 Ariadne Builders & Developers Private Limited -0.01%  (292.04) -0.43%  (304.81)

 Armand Builders & Constructions Private Limited 0.22%  5,371.92 0.00%  (1.22)

 Benedict Estates Developers Private Limited 0.01%  359.93 0.45%  318.21 

 Berenice Real Estate Private Limited 0.00%  (3.51) 0.00%  (0.30)

 Beyla Builders & Developers Private Limited 0.00%  (62.83) -0.55%  (384.63)

 Bhamini Real Estate Developers Private Limited -0.08%  (2,063.03) -0.01%  (6.08)

 Breeze Constructions Private Limited -0.43%  (10,786.42) -0.57%  (398.25)

 Caraf Builders & Constructions Private Limited -0.84%  (20,912.08) 0.30%  210.72 

 Chakradharee Estates Developers Private Limited 0.06%  1,542.13 2.15%  1,506.12 

 Chandrajyoti Estate Developers Private Limited -0.10%  (2,470.25) 0.00%  (0.14)

 Dae Real Estates Private Limited -0.03%  (654.06) -1.26%  (884.74)

 Dalmia Promoters and Developers Private Limited -0.04%  (1,021.43) 0.00%  (2.12)

 Delanco Home and Resorts Private Limited -0.02%  (577.57) -0.32%  (221.90)

 Delanco Realtors Private Limited 0.00%  95.66 -0.51%  (354.36)

 Deltaland Buildcon Private Limited -0.01%  (257.60) -0.01%  (4.22)

 Daffodil Hotels Private Limited 0.03%  809.44 1.39%  970.99 

 DLF Aspinwal Hotels Private Limited -0.20%  (4,976.03) -0.02%  (13.18)

 DLF Assets Private Limited 7.46%  185,023.92 94.05%  65,928.10 

 DLF City Centre Limited -0.16%  (4,089.61) -0.25%  (174.88)

 DLF Cochin Hotels Private Limited -0.08%  (1,978.56) 0.00%  (2.04)

 DLF Commercial Developers Limited 7.26%  180,107.06 -9.77%  (6,851.82)

 DLF Commercial Projects Corporation -0.01%  (304.72) -0.25%  (175.11)

 DLF Cyber City Developers Limited 25.39%  629,697.86 96.48%  67,627.85 

 DLF Emporio Limited 1.56%  38,761.68 2.92%  2,048.44 

 DLF Emporio Restaurants Limited -0.20%  (5,015.59) -0.10%  (69.85)
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Name of Entity Net assets i.e. total assets 

minus total liabilities

Share in profit or (loss)

 As % of 

consolidated 

net assets 

` in lakhs As % of 

consolidated 

net assets 

` in lakhs

 DLF Energy Private Limited 0.00%  10.21 0.03%  23.97 

 DLF Estate Developers Limited 0.03%  839.02 0.17%  116.92 

 DLF Finvest Limited 0.00%  115.50 0.02%  16.24 

 DLF Garden City Indore Private Limited [w.e.f. 21 March 2017] 0.00% - 0.03%  17.96 

 DLF Gayatri Developers 0.07%  1,761.02 -1.58%  (1,107.86)

 DLF Green Valley 0.03%  698.66 -0.53%  (373.18)

 DLF Luxury Homes Limited (formerly DLF GK Residency Limited) -1.62%  (40,221.47) -14.42% (10,106.12)

 DLF Golf Resorts Limited 0.01%  266.47 -0.21%  (146.54)

 DLF Home Developers Limited 7.59%  188,318.59 -49.65% (34,804.59)

 DLF Homes Goa Private Limited -0.25%  (6,180.22) -0.02%  (13.19)

 DLF Homes Kokapet Private Limited -0.30%  (7,355.37) 0.11%  74.32 

 DLF Homes Services Private Limited -0.07%  (1,621.51) -1.36%  (956.01)

 DLF Hospitality and Recreational Limited [till 7 June 2016] -0.01%  (149.46) 0.00% -

 DLF Hotel Holdings Limited 0.15%  3,637.04 -2.16%  (1,516.39)

 DLF Info City Developers (Chandigarh) Limited 0.66%  16,355.97 5.85%  4,100.24 

 DLF Info City Developers (Kolkata) Limited 1.02%  25,194.60 2.16%  1,516.60 

 DLF Info Park (Pune) Limited -0.12%  (3,051.40) 0.00%  (2.11)

 DLF Info Park Developers (Chennai) Limited -0.03%  (666.43) -0.04%  (24.61)

 DLF Inns Limited [till 7 June 2016] 0.00%  (3.99) 0.00% -

 DLF Luxury Hotels Limited [till 7 June 2016] 0.00%  (3.99) 0.00% -

 DLF Office Developers 0.04%  875.18 -0.15%  (102.15)

 DLF Phase-IV Commercial Developers Limited -0.01%  (191.19) 0.00%  (2.25)

 DLF Projects Limited -0.11%  (2,814.59) -2.36%  (1,657.75)

 DLF Promenade Limited 0.01%  167.76 6.63%  4,647.68 

 DLF Property Developers Limited 0.02%  490.78 -0.10%  (68.33)

 DLF Real Estate Builders Limited -0.90%  (22,346.16) -0.89%  (622.08)

 DLF Realtors Private Limited [till 7 June 2016] 0.00% - 0.00% -

 DLF Recreational Foundation Limited 0.03%  679.22 0.42%  291.41 

 DLF Residential Builders Limited -0.05%  (1,126.81) 0.00%  (2.22)

 DLF Residential Developers Limited -0.05%  (1,185.93) -0.01%  (9.18)

 DLF Residential Partners Limited -0.20%  (4,991.11) 0.14%  97.90 

 DLF Service Apartments Limited [till 7 June 2016] 0.00%  (3.99) 0.00% -

 DLF South Point Limited 0.03%  649.87 -0.03%  (23.18)

 DLF Southern Towns Private Limited [w.e.f. 21 March 2017] -1.12%  (27,790.58) -0.05%  (32.55)

 DLF Universal Limited -0.18%  (4,518.89) 1.23%  864.68 

 DLF Utilities Limited -3.56%  (88,179.05) -91.03% (63,812.52)

 Domus Real Estate Private Limited -0.01%  (216.99) 0.04%  25.09 

 Eastern India Powertech Limited -0.20%  (5,017.98) -0.25%  (175.52)
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Name of Entity Net assets i.e. total assets 

minus total liabilities

Share in profit or (loss)

 As % of 

consolidated 

net assets 

` in lakhs As % of 

consolidated 

net assets 

` in lakhs

 Edward Keventer (Successors) Private Limited -0.38%  (9,425.68) -0.57%  (401.85)

 Elvira Builders & Constructions Private Limited -0.00%  (0.98) 0.00%  (1.49)

 Faye Builders & Constructions Private Limited 0.00%  (4.48) 0.00%  (0.88)

 Galleria Property Management Services Private Limited -0.34%  (8,328.31) -1.11%  (779.19)

 Ghaliya Builders & Developers Private Limited 0.00%  (2.38) 0.00%  (0.41)

 Hansel Builders & Developers Private Limited 0.00%  (6.81) 0.00%  (1.07)

 Hyacintia Real Estate Developers Private Limited 0.00% - 0.00% -

 Isabel Builders & Developers Private Limited 0.00%  (57.35) -0.01%  (9.22)

 Kavicon Partners Limited 0.00% - 0.00% -

 Lada Estates Private Limited 0.00%  2.10 0.00%  (0.94)

 Latona Builders & Constructions Private Limited 0.00%  (25.36) 0.00%  (1.20)

 Lear Builders & Developers Private Limited 0.00%  (2.78) 0.00%  (0.94)

 Lempo Buildwell Private Limited 0.00%  3.64 0.00%  (0.81)

 Liber Buildwell Private Limited 0.00%  (3.61) 0.00%  (1.13)

 Livana Builders & Developers Private Limited 0.00%  (25.57) 0.00%  (1.20)

 Lizebeth Builders & Developers Private Limited -0.03%  (784.60) -1.20%  (843.73)

 Lodhi Property Company Limited -1.65%  (40,955.85) -3.01%  (2,111.60)

 Mariabella Builders & Developers Private Limited 0.00%  (60.59) 0.02%  14.70 

 Melosa Builders & Developers Private Limited -1.19%  (29,436.22) 0.00%  (0.95)

 Mens Buildcon Private Limited 0.00%  (72.16) 0.00%  (0.43)

 Mhaya Buildcon Private Limited [till 20 November 2016] 0.00%  0.17 0.00% -

 Nambi Buildwell Private Limited 0.33%  8,133.11 11.77%  8,247.44 

 Narooma Builders & Developers Private Limited 0.01%  249.04 0.00%  (0.90)

 Nellis Builders & Developers Private Limited 0.00%  (48.68) 0.00%  (1.42)

  Shivaji Marg Maintenance Services Limited (formerly NewGen 

MedWorld Hospitals Limited) 

0.00%  (110.47) 0.00%  (2.50)

 Niobe Builders & Developers Private Limited 0.01%  194.32 -0.01%  (10.11)

 Nudhar Builders & Developers Private Limited 0.00%  47.43 0.00%  (0.88)

 Paliwal Developers Limited 0.13%  3,272.13 0.36%  253.51 

 Paliwal Real Estate Limited -0.01%  (135.78) 0.00%  (3.11)

 Phoena Builders & Developers Private Limited 0.00%  18.45 -0.05%  (35.57)

 Pyrite Builders & Constructions Private Limited 0.00%  (2.20) 0.00%  (1.01)

 Qabil Builders & Constructions Private Limited 0.00%  7.70 0.00%  (0.79)

 Rachelle Builders & Constructions Private Limited 0.00%  9.08 0.02%  12.19 

 Rational Builders & Developers 0.00%  (35.95) 0.00%  (2.44)

 Richmond Park Property Management Services Limited -0.08%  (1,896.87) -0.01%  (5.12)

 Riveria Commercial Developers Limited -0.08%  (1,951.37) -0.15%  (104.65)

 Rochelle Builders & Constructions Private Limited 0.00%  (18.63) 0.00%  (1.85)
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Name of Entity Net assets i.e. total assets 

minus total liabilities

Share in profit or (loss)

 As % of 

consolidated 

net assets 

` in lakhs As % of 

consolidated 

net assets 

` in lakhs

 Royalton Builders & Developers Private Limited 0.00%  (26.23) 0.00%  (1.20)

 Sahastrajit Builders & Developers Private Limited 0.00% - 0.00% -

  SC Hospitality Private Limited (formerly Saket Courtyard Hospitalty 

Private Limited ) 

-0.39%  (9,783.55) 2.81%  1,972.71 

 Saket Holidays Resorts Private Limited -0.01%  (291.80) 0.00%  (0.29)

 Seaberi Builders & Developers Private Limited 0.00% - 0.00% -

 Triumph Electronics Private Limited [till 23 March 2017] 0.00% - 0.02%  17.03 

 Urvasi Infratech Private Limited -0.01%  (146.72) 0.01%  6.20 

 Vibodh Developers Private Limited -0.01%  (331.58) -0.51%  (359.94)

 Vkarma Capital Investment Management Company Private Limited -0.09%  (2,222.34) 0.02%  15.63 

 Vkarma Capital Trustee Company Private Limited 0.00%  (8.15) 0.00%  (1.33)

 Webcity Builders & Developers Private Limited -0.01%  (163.86) -0.11%  (77.40)

 Foreign subsidiaries

 DLF Global Hospitality Limited -1.43%  (35,381.67) -21.44% (15,030.41)

 Silverlink (Mauritius) Limited 0.97%  24,053.72 -0.01%  (8.70)

Minority interest in all subsidaries 0.50%  12,389.35 0.97%  680.11 

Joint ventures/ Associates investment as per equity method

 Designplus Associates Services Private Limited -0.01%  (157.55) 0.00%  (1.74)

 Joyous Housing Limited -0.02%  (516.10) -0.29%  (203.08)

 DLF Homes Panchkula Private Limited -0.35%  (8,632.59) -4.53%  (3,173.20)

 DLF Garden City Indore Private Limited [till 20 March 2017] 0.00% -- -0.08%  (59.19)

 DLF Homes Rajapura Private Limited [till 20 March 2017] 0.00% - 0.76%  535.20 

 DLF Southern Towns Private Limited [till 20 March 2017] 0.00% - -1.94%  (1,360.06)

 DLF Midtown Private Limited -0.01%  (209.32) -0.02%  (14.40)

 DLF Urban Private Limited 0.00%  (93.57) -0.02%  (12.25)

 DLF Southern Homes Private Limited [till 20 March 2017] 0.00% - -4.83%  (3,386.89)

 YG Realty Private Limited -0.29%  (7,126.50) -2.20%  (1,539.19)

 DLF SBPL Developers Private Limited 0.00%  (81.26) -0.03%  (21.37)

 DLF Gayatri Home Developers Private Limited 0.00%  (39.09) -0.03%  (22.65)

 Annabel Builders & Developers Private Limited [till 20 March 2017] 0.00%  (9.99) 0.00%  (0.62)

 Arizona Globalservices Private Limited 0.00%  118.68 -0.05%  33.48 

 62. FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IND AS

A. Explanation of transition to Ind AS

 These are the Group’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

 The accounting policies have been applied consistently in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017, 

the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 and in the preparation of an 

opening Ind AS balance sheet at 1 April 2015 (the Group’s date of transition). An explanation of how the transition from previous 

GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Group’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows is set-out in the following tables 

and notes.
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1 Reconciliation of total equity as at 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2015 

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Notes 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Previous 

GAAP

(Refer Note 

A below)

Effect of 

transition to 

Ind AS

(Refer Note B 

below)

Ind AS Previous 

GAAP

(Refer Note A 

below)

Effect of 

transition to 

Ind AS

(Refer Note B 

below)

Ind AS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and 

equipment

Note 12 2,049,433.74 (1,774,279.35)  275,154.39  1,821,211.86 (1,594,484.66)  226,727.20 

Capital work-in-progress Note 12  386,749.72  (208,843.66)  177,906.06  576,830.14  (375,227.45)  201,602.69 

Investment property Note 12  -  1,930,637.37  1,930,637.37  -  1,917,646.01 1,917,646.01 

Goodwill Note 13  106,273.60  (4,483.79)  101,789.81  120,582.21  -  120,582.21 

Other intangible assets Note 12  19,523.09  (2,149.08)  17,374.01  20,082.23  (2,219.55)  17,862.68 

Investments accounted for 

using the equity method

Note 5  76,368.80  105,676.13  182,044.93  42,014.03  121,923.49  163,937.52 

Financial assets

 Investments Note 5 

and 

Note 9

 11,104.81  (226.68)  10,878.13  10,031.38  (518.92)  9,512.46 

 Trade receivables Note 2  10,718.09  (3,731.46)  6,986.63  7,147.66  1,738.65  8,886.31 

 Loans Note 3 

and 

Note 4

 98,923.32  (62,168.38)  36,754.94  94,392.84  (60,928.12)  33,464.72 

 Other financial assets Note 3  112,416.74  (69,941.52)  42,475.22  88,215.26  (61,588.98)  26,626.28 

Deferred tax assets (net) Note 10  212,395.79  205,636.61  418,032.40  151,081.89  264,363.96  415,445.85 

Non-current tax asset (net)  201,502.16  (9,218.80)  192,283.36  203,458.58  (39,821.04)  163,637.54 

Other non-current assets Note 3  95,581.50  64,078.98  159,660.48  84,147.95  34,234.49  118,382.44 

Total non-current assets 3,380,991.36  170,986.36  3,551,977.72  3,219,196.03  205,117.88 3,424,313.91 

Current assets

Inventories Note 1 1,750,689.20  (67,265.65)  1,683,423.55  1,774,306.55  (37,917.49) 1,736,389.06 

Financial assets

 Investments Note 5 

and 

Note 9

 9,570.02  (2,158.86)  7,411.16  10,296.07  (643.44)  9,652.63 

 Trade receivables Note 1 

and 

Note 4

 999,302.84  (657,609.44)  341,693.40  1,118,689.61  (834,673.34)  284,016.27 

 Cash and cash equivalents  259,617.06  5,559.55  265,176.61  243,157.07  986.87  244,143.94 

 Other bank balances  77,526.19  (4,570.77)  72,955.42  31,608.28  (209.42)  31,398.86 

 Loans Note 3  86,238.06  21,153.17  107,391.23  44,011.03  13,311.68  57,322.71 

 Other financial assets Note 3  115,109.16  (96,353.54)  18,755.62  151,846.63  (114,176.08)  37,670.55 

Other current assets Note 3  77,194.01  47,069.76  124,263.77  33,122.22  92,664.91  125,787.13 

Total current assets 3,375,246.54  (754,175.78)  2,621,070.76  3,407,037.46  (880,656.31) 2,526,381.15 

Total assets 6,756,237.90  (583,189.42)  6,173,048.48  6,626,233.49  (675,538.43) 5,950,695.06 
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Particulars Notes 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Previous 

GAAP

(Refer Note 

A below)

Effect of 

transition to 

Ind AS

(Refer Note B 

below)

Ind AS Previous 

GAAP

(Refer Note A 

below)

Effect of 

transition to 

Ind AS

(Refer Note B 

below)

Ind AS

Equity

 Equity share capital  35,674.32  -  35,674.32  35,638.55  -  35,638.55 

 Other equity Equity 

Reco

2,860,036.21  (488,802.09)  2,371,234.12  2,881,171.03  (489,729.50) 2,391,441.53 

Equity attributable to 

owners of Holding Company

2,895,710.53  (488,802.09)  2,406,908.44  2,916,809.58  (489,729.50) 2,427,080.08 

Non-controlling interests Note 9  11,175.98  1,437.94  12,613.92  17,472.42  (5,659.37)  11,813.05 

Total equity 2,906,886.51  (487,364.15)  2,419,522.36  2,934,282.00  (495,388.87) 2,438,893.13 

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities

 Borrowings Note 6 2,185,696.84  (152,843.19)  2,032,853.65  1,762,958.34  (104,910.50) 1,658,047.84 

 Trade payables  81,049.10  (1,439.98)  79,609.12  81,446.99  (1,628.93)  79,818.06 

 Other financial liabilities Note 2  166,179.65  (54,956.89)  111,222.76  155,502.59  (48,801.25)  106,701.34 

Provisions  6,181.49  (83.19)  6,098.30  6,222.48  (128.93)  6,093.55 

Deferred tax liabilities (net) Note 10  12,462.02  (12,345.94)  116.08  -  116.08  116.08 

Other non-current liabilities Note 2  9,567.15  27,121.07  36,688.22  13,253.96  22,244.71  35,498.67 

Total non-current liabilities 2,461,136.25  (194,548.12)  2,266,588.13  2,019,384.36  (133,108.82) 1,886,275.54 

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities

 Borrowings Note 6  268,038.27  1,317.14  269,355.41  307,176.88  11,775.18  318,952.06 

 Trade payables  156,235.93  (4,814.80)  151,421.13  185,068.73  (22,673.01)  162,395.72 

 Other financial liabilities Note 2 

and 

Note 3

 321,204.71  89,209.38  410,414.09  446,440.80  46,464.80  492,905.60 

Other current liabilities Note 1 

and 

Note 3

 592,177.93  13,466.33  605,644.26  658,985.76  (38,482.76)  620,503.00 

Provisions - others Note 7  1,838.25  (145.01)  1,693.24  45,726.00  (43,723.08)  2,002.92 

Provisions - current tax 

liabilities (net)

 48,720.05  (310.18)  48,409.87  29,168.96  (401.87)  28,767.09 

Total current liabilities 1,388,215.14  98,722.86  1,486,938.00  1,672,567.13  (47,040.74) 1,625,526.39 

Total liabilities 6,756,237.90  (583,189.41)  6,173,048.49  6,626,233.49  (675,538.43) 5,950,695.06 

 Notes:

 A. The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to confirm to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.

 B. This column include the impact on account of following:

- Impact of new entities consolidated under Ind AS namely DLF Gayatri Developers and DLF Green Valley.

- Impact of entities de-consolidated under Ind AS namely DLF Southern Homes Private Limited, DLF Southern Towns Private 

Limited, DLF Garden City Indore Private Limited and DLF Homes Rajapura Private Limited.

- Impact of joint venture entities which are proportionately consolidated under previous GAAP whereas consolidated/accounted 

using equity method under Ind AS.

(` in lakhs)
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2 Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2016 

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Notes Previous 

GAAP

(Refer Note 

A below)

Effect of 

transition to 

Ind AS

(Refer Note 

B below)

Ind AS

Revenue

Revenue from operations Note 1 and 

Note 2

 925,986.36  66,574.93  992,561.29 

Other income Note 3 and 

Note 5

 55,928.85  11,214.28  67,143.13 

Total revenue  981,915.21  77,789.21 1,059,704.42 

Expenses

Cost of land, plots, development rights, constructed properties and others Note 1  405,028.26  50,757.73  455,785.99 

Employee benefits expense Note 11  31,502.18  21.75  31,523.93 

Finance costs Note 3  261,542.64  6,437.20  267,979.84 

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment Note 8  77,779.30  (1,190.11)  76,589.19 

Other expenses Note 6 and 

Note 8

 102,864.21  2,668.51  105,532.72 

Total expenses  878,716.59  58,695.08  937,411.67 

Profit before exceptional items and tax  103,198.62  19,094.13  122,292.75 

Exceptional items (net) Note 8  (7,858.57)  (11,808.72)  (19,667.29)

Profit before tax  95,340.05  7,285.41  102,625.46 

Tax expense

 Current tax (including earlier years)  65,505.33  (163.44)  65,341.89 

 Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement (including earlier years)  (29,404.31)  (455.64)  (29,859.95)

 Deferred tax Note 10  5,833.00  15,108.65  20,941.65 

Profit after tax  53,406.03  (7,204.16)  46,201.87 

Share of (loss) in associates and joint ventures (net) Note 8  (3,471.69)  (12,220.12)  (15,691.81)

Profit for the year  49,934.34  (19,424.28)  30,510.06 

Prior period items Note 8  (2,136.49)  2,136.49  - 

Net profit for the year  47,797.85  (17,287.79)  30,510.06 

Other comprehensive income

A. Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss 

 Net (loss)/gain on FVOCI equity instruments Note 5 and 

Note 11

 -  95.58  95.58 

 Income tax effect Note 10  -  (29.11)  (29.11)

 Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans Note 11  -  172.08  172.08 

 Income tax effect Note 10  -  (35.98)  (35.98)

B. Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

  Amortisation of forward element of forward contracts and recognition of 

changes in fair value of hedging instrument

Note 6 and 

Note 11

 -  3,796.02  3,796.02 

 Income tax effect Note 10  -  (1,313.73)  (1,313.73)

Other comprehensive income for the year  -  2,684.86  2,684.86 

Non-controlling interests  7,141.37  (7,031.34)  110.03 

Total comprehensive income for the year (after non-controlling interests)  54,939.22  (21,634.27)  33,304.95 

 Notes:

 A. The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to confirm to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.



263

 B. This column include the impact on account of following:

- Impact of new entities consolidated under Ind AS namely DLF Gayatri Developers and DLF Green Valley.

- Impact of entities de-consolidated under Ind AS namely DLF Southern Homes Private Limited.

- Impact of joint venture entities which are proportionately consolidated under previous GAAP whereas consolidated/accounted 

using equity method under Ind AS.

B. Ind AS optional exemptions

 1. Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets

  Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as 

recognized in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as 

its deemed cost as at the date of transition. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible 

Assets and investment property covered by Ind AS 40 Investment Properties. Accordingly, the Group has elected to measure all of 

its property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment property at their previous GAAP carrying value.

 2. Designation of previously recognized financial instruments

  Ind AS 101 allows an entity to designate investments in equity instruments at FVOCI on the basis of the facts and circumstances at 

the date of transition to Ind AS. The Group has elected to apply this exemption for its investment in equity investments.

 3. Share based payments

  Ind AS 102 Share based payments requires an entity to record the options on their fair value instead of intrinsic value. Ind AS 101 

permits a first time adopter to ignore such requirement for the options already vested as on transition date that is 1 April 2015. The 

Group has elected to apply this exemptions for such vested options.

 4. Joint ventures

  The initial investment in Joint Venture has been measured as the aggregate of the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities that 

the Group had previously proportionately consolidated, including any goodwill arising from acquisition. The balance of the investment 

in joint venture at the date of transition to Ind AS, determined in accordance with the above is regarded as the deemed cost of the 

investment at initial recognition.

 5. Business combination

  Ind AS 101 provides the option to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively from the transition date or from a specific date prior to the transition 

date. This provides relief from full retrospective application that would require restatement of all business combinations prior to the 

transition date. The Group elected to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively to business combinations occurring after its transition date. 

Business combinations occurring prior to the transition date have not been restated.

 6. Compound financial instrument

  Under Ind AS 32, entities should split compound financial instruments into separate equity and liability components. Ind AS 101 

provides that if the liability component is no longer outstanding at the date of transition, a first-time adopter does not have to separate 

it from the equity component. The Group has elected to apply this exemption.

C. Ind AS mandatory exceptions

1. Estimates

 An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the 

same date in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is 

objective evidence that those estimates were in error.

 Ind AS estimates as at 1 April 2015 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with previous GAAP. 

The Group made estimates for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under 

previous GAAP:

 a) Investment in equity instruments carried at FVTPL or FVOCI

  b) Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model.

2. Classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities

 Classification of financial asset is required to be made on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition 

to Ind AS. Further, if it is impracticable for the Group to apply retrospectively the effective interest method in Ind AS 109, the fair 

value of the financial asset or the financial liability at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be the new gross carrying amount of that 

financial asset or the new amortised cost of that financial liability at the date of transition to Ind AS.
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3. Hedge accounting

 Hedge accounting can only be applied prospectively from the transition date to transactions that satisfy the hedge accounting 

criteria in Ind AS 109, at that date. Hedging relationships cannot be designated retrospectively and the supporting documentation 

cannot be created retrospectively. The Group applied hedge accounting to hedge of foreign exchange risk for a foreign currency 

loan from date of transition, which is the date when the hedging relationship was fully designated and documented in accordance 

with the requirements in Ind AS 109.

D. Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS

 Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The following tables 

represent the reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

 1. Reconciliation of total equity as at 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2015 

(` in lakhs)

Notes 31 March 2016  1 April 2015 

Total equity (shareholder’s funds) as per previous GAAP  2,906,886.51  2,934,282.00 

Adjustments:

Impact on account of change in project accounting as per new guidance note on 

real estate

Note 1  (246,143.05)  (247,410.60)

Impact on account of change in measurement of revenue from real estate 

development (net of cost)

Note 1  (407,356.19)  (408,802.20)

Impact on lease and recreational income - lease incentive, rent escalation etc. Note 2  (2,949.10)  1,873.45 

Recognition of financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost Note 3  (34,410.87)  (38,936.18)

Expected credit loss on financial assets Note 4  (29,288.65)  (28,188.11)

Recognition of financial assets at fair value Note 5  6,976.69  3,090.66 

Impact of hedge accounting Note 6  (5,666.67)  (7,694.71)

Reversal of proposed dividend Note 7  -  35,638.55 

Other miscellaneous adjustments Note 8  4,330.56  (20,794.51)

Impact of entities accounted as associates/joint ventures and impact of non 

controlling interests

Note 9  15,886.15  (11,498.12)

Tax impact of above adjustments Note 10  211,256.97  227,332.90 

Total adjustments  (487,364.16)  (495,388.87)

Total equity as per Ind AS  2,419,522.35  2,438,893.13 

 2. Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2016 

(` in lakhs)

Notes 31 March 2016 

Profit after tax as per previous GAAP  54,939.22 

Adjustments:

Revenue recognition of developed properties (net of cost) Note 1  2,713.56 

Impact of adjustments on leasing income Note 2  5,727.48 

Impact of hedge accounting Note 6  2,028.03 

Amortised cost financial instruments Note 3  (10,829.94)

Fair valuation of investments/dilution of stake Note 5  (7,868.00)

Other miscellaneous adjustments Note 8  2,560.34 

Tax impact of above adjustments Note 10  (16,075.77)

Total adjustments  (21,744.30)

Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2016 (before non-controlling 

interests)

 33,194.92 

Non-controlling interests  (110.03)

Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2016 (after non-controlling 

interests)

 33,304.95 
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 3. Reconciliation of statement of cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2016 

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Previous 

GAAP

(Refer Note 1 

below)

Adjustments

(Refer Note 2 

below)

 Ind AS 

Net cash flow from operating activities  308,483.83  (12,796.90)  295,686.93 

Net cash used in investing activities  (92,228.41)  10,427.47  (81,800.94)

Net cash used in financing activities (199,799.44)  6,946.12  (192,853.32)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  16,455.98  4,576.69  21,032.67 

Cash and cash equivalents at the 1 April 2015  243,165.27  978.67  244,143.94 

Cash and cash equivalents at the 31 March 2016  259,621.25  5,555.36  265,176.61 

 Notes: 

 1 The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to confirm to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.

 2 This column include the impact on account of following:

- Impact of new entities consolidated under Ind AS namely DLF Gayatri Developers and DLF Green Valley.

- Impact of entities de-consolidated under Ind AS namely DLF Southern Homes Private Limited.

- Impact of joint venture entities which are proportionately consolidated under previous GAAP whereas consolidated/ accounted 

using equity method under Ind AS.

Note – 1 Revenue

Under previous GAAP, revenue from real estate development was recognized in accordance with Guidance Note on 

Accounting for Real Estate Transactions [GN(A)23 (Revised 2012)] issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

(ICAI). Revenue in respect of projects commenced before that date (i.e. 2012 Guidance Note was applicable prospectively) 

was recognized in accordance with Guidance note on Recognition of Revenue by Real Estate Developers [GN(A) 23 (Issued 

2006)] issued by ICAI. The 2012 guidance note requires project revenue to be measured at “consideration received or 

receivable” whereas the 2006 Guidance Note only provided guidance on timing of recognition of revenue. Under Ind AS, 

revenue from all real estate developement projects is measured at “Fair value of consideration received or receivable”, in 

accordance with Guidance Note on Accounting for Real Estate transactions (Ind AS). The new accounting policies require 

the management to make certain judgments and estimates based on facts and circumstances of each project along with an 

analysis of past information related thereto.

Note – 2 Lease and recreational income

Under previous GAAP, operating lease rentals were straight lined over the lease period. Under Ind AS, if the payments by the 

lessee are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost, 

lease reserve should not be booked. Consequent to this change, the amount of retained earnings has been decreased. Also 

under Ind AS, rent free period is straight-lined over the lease term as the same is considered as incentive.

Under previous GAAP, entry fees of club were booked at the time of receipt of fees which has been deferred over 5 year period.

Note – 3 Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost

(a) Financial liabilities at amortised cost

 Ind AS 109 requires transaction costs incurred towards origination of borrowings to be deducted from the carrying amount 

of borrowings on initial recognition. These costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss over the tenure of the 

borrowing as part of the interest expense by applying the effective interest rate method.

 Under previous GAAP, financial liabilities were initially recognized at transaction price. Subsequently, any finance 

costs was recognized based on contractual terms. Under Ind AS, such financial instruments are initially recognized 

at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost determined using the effective interest rate. Any difference 

between transaction price and fair value affects profit and loss unless it quantifies for recognition as some other type 

of liability.
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(b) Financial assets at amortised cost

 Under previous GAAP, financial assets were initially recognized at transaction price. Subsequently, any finance income 

was recognized based on contractual terms. Under Ind AS, such financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value 

and subsequently carried at amortised cost determined using the effective interest rate. Any difference between transaction 

price and fair value affects profit and loss unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset.

Note – 4 Expected credit loss on financial assets

Under previous GAAP, provision for doubtful debts was recognized based on the estimates of the outcome and of the financial 

effect of contingencies determined by the management of the Company. This judgement was based on consideration of 

information available up to the date on which the financial statements were approved and included a review of events occurring 

after the balance sheet date.

Under Ind AS, a loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognized on financial asets carried at amortised cost. Expected 

loss on individually significant receivables is assessed when they are past due and based on Company’s historical counterparty 

default rates and forecast of macro-economic factors. Other receivabels have been segmented by reference to the shared 

credit risk characteristics to evaluate the expected credit loss.

Note – 5 Fair valuation of investments/loss of control

 A Under previous GAAP, investments in long-term equity instrument were carried at cost and tested for other than temporary 

diminution. Under Ind AS, such investments are carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) or fair value through 

other comprehensive income (FVOCI) (except for investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture).

 B Investments accounted using equity method have been adjusted consequent to the Ind AS transition adjustments in group 

entities and related impact on dilution of stake.

Note – 6 Hedge contracts

The Group has certain hedging relationships wherein principal payments under a foreign currency loan was hedged at an 

agreed rate under a principal only swap. Under the previous GAAP the arrangement was effectively accounted as a liability 

at agreed forward rate. Under Ind AS, the Group had assessed that the hedging relationship qualifies for hedge accounting 

as per Ind AS 109. Accordingly, the Group has applied accounting for forward element of forward contracts under Ind AS 109 

wherein the changes in fair value derivative is (after the transition date) is recognized in other comprehensive income and 

are accumulated in ‘Cash Flow Hedge Reserve’. Subsequent to the transition date the forward element of the derivative is 

amortised over the tenure of the foreign currency borrowing.

Note – 7 Proposed dividend

Under the previous GAAP, dividend proposed by the Board of Directors after the balance sheet date but before the approval 

of the financial statements were considered as adjusting events. Accordingly, proposed dividend was recognized as a liability. 

Under Ind AS, such dividend are recognized when the same is approved by the shareholders in the general meeting.

Note – 8 Other miscellaneous adjustments

 A Under previous GAAP convertible preference shares are recognized at transaction cost, under Ind AS, convertible 

preference shares (accounted as compound financial instrument) are separated into loan given and equity component of 

investments based on the terms of the contract. 

 B Under the previous GAAP, the Group had the option to measure the cost of equity-settled employee share-based plan either 

using the intrinsic value method or using the fair value method. Under Ind AS, the cost of equity settled share-based plan is 

recognized based on the fair value of the options as at the grant date.

Note – 9 Impact of entities accounted as associates/joint ventures and impact of non controlling interests

The Group has taken additional impact of changes in net assets (inequity accounted investee) due to impact of Ind AS 

adjustments in these entities. Also, the Group has transferred the additional impact to non-controlling interests for changes 

carried out in these entities consequent to the Ind AS adjustments.

Note – 10 Tax impact on adjustments

Retained earnings and statement of profit and loss has been adjusted consequent to the Ind AS transition adjustments with 

corresponding impact to deferred tax, wherever applicable.



267

Note – 11 Other comprehensive income

Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognized in a period should be included in profit or loss for the period, 

unless a standard requires or permits otherwise. Items of income and expense that are not recognized in profit or loss 

but are shown in the statement of profit and loss as ‘other comprehensive income’ includes re-measurements of defined 

benefit plans, effective portion of gain or loss on cash flow hedging instruments, fair value gain or loss on FVOCI equity 

instruments and their corresponding income tax effects. The concept of other comprehensive income did not exist under 

previous GAAP.

Note – 12 Investment property

Under the previous GAAP, investment properties were presented as part of property, plant and equipment. Under Ind AS, 

investment properties are required to be separately presented on the face of the balance sheet. There is no impact on the total 

equity or profit as a result of this adjustment.

Note – 13 Business combination

Under the previous GAAP, excess of purchase consideration over and above the carrying value of assets is recorded as 

goodwill. Under Ind AS, the assets of acquired entity are to be recorded at fair value and new intangibles assets are identified 

(if any) and balance (if any) is recorded as goodwill. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ashok Kumar Tyagi Subhash Setia Mohit Gujral Rajeev Talwar Rajiv Singh
Group Chief Financial Offi cer Company Secretary CEO & Whole-time Director CEO & Whole-time Director Vice Chairman

DIN: 00051538 DIN: 01440785 DIN: 00003214

for Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

New Delhi per Neeraj Sharma

26 May 2017 Partner
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Notice

Notice is hereby given that the 52nd Annual General 

Meeting (AGM) of DLF Limited will be held on Friday, the 

29 September 2017 at 12.00 Noon at DLF Club 5, Opposite 

Trinity Tower, Club Drive, DLF5, Gurugram - 122 002 

(Haryana) to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial 

Statements (including the Consolidated Financial 

Statements) for the financial year ended 31 March 

2017 together with the Reports of Board of Directors 

and Auditors thereon.

2. To declare dividend.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. G.S. Talwar 

(DIN 00559460), who retires by rotation and being 

eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

4. To appoint Statutory Auditors and fix their remuneration 

and to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary 

Resolution: 

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 

Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, 

if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 including any 

statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof 

for the time being in force read with the Companies 

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, 

S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants 

(FRN 301003E/E300005), be and are hereby 

appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a 

term of 5 (five) consecutive years from the conclusion 

of 52nd Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 

57th Annual General Meeting, at such remuneration as 

may be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company.”

Special Business:

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following 

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions 

of Section 148 and other applicable provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time 

being in force read with the Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended and the Companies 

(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, 

the remuneration payable to M/s R.J. Goel & Co., Cost 

Accountants (FRN 000026), appointed by the Board of 

Directors (the “Board”) to conduct the audit of the cost 

records pertaining to real estate development activities 

of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 

2017, amounting to ` 3.25 lakhs (Rupees three lakhs 

twenty five thousand only) plus applicable taxes and 

reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses, if any, be 

and is hereby ratified and confirmed.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is 

hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, things 

and matters and give all such directions as it may in 

its absolute discretion deem necessary, expedient or 

desirable, in order to give effect to this resolution.”

6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following 

resolution as a Special Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 

Section 42, 71 and other applicable provisions, if any, 

of the Companies Act, 2013, including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time 

being in force read with the Companies (Prospectus 

and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, as amended 

and the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) 

Rules, 2014, as amended, SEBI (Issue and Listing of 

Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008, as amended, SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, as amended and other applicable 

Securities and Exchange Board of India regulations 

and guidelines, the provisions of the Memorandum and 

Articles of Association of the Company and subject to 

other applicable laws, rules, regulations/ guidelines, the 

consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded 

to the Board of Directors (the “Board”), which term 

shall include any Committee thereof constituted/ to be 

constituted by the Board, to offer or invite subscriptions 

for secured/ unsecured redeemable Non-convertible 

Debentures (“NCDs”) including subordinated debentures, 

bonds and/ or other debt securities etc., in one or more 

series/ tranches up to an aggregate amount of ` 2,500 

crore (Rupees two thousand five hundred crore only), 

on a private placement basis and on such terms and 

conditions as the Board may, from time to time, determine 

and consider proper and beneficial to the Company.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is 

hereby authorized to determine the terms of issue 

of such securities including the class of investors, 

securities to be offered, number of securities, series, 

tranches, issue price, denomination, currency, tenor, 

interest rate, premium/ discount, repayment, listing 

or otherwise, howsoever, as it may think appropriate 

and to do all such acts, deeds and things, as it 

may, in its absolute discretion, consider necessary, 

expedient or desirable including appointment of 

intermediaries and to sign and execute any deed(s)/ 

document(s)/ undertaking(s)/ agreement(s)/ paper(s)/ 

underwriting(s) and also to delegate all or any of the 

above powers, as may be required to give effect to this 

resolution or as otherwise considered by the Board to 

be in the best interest of the Company.”
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7. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following 

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 23 of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) read with the 

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

the rules framed thereunder, including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being 

in force, approval of the Company be and is hereby 

accorded to the Board of Directors (the “Board”), which 

term shall include any Committee thereof constituted/ 

to be constituted by the Board, to enter into such 

contracts/ arrangements/ transactions with DLF Cyber 

City Developers Limited, DLF Assets Private Limited, 

DLF Utilities Limited and DLF Power & Services Limited, 

subsidiaries and related parties of the Company for the 

purposes of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing 

Regulations, as more particularly enumerated in the 

statement to the Notice, for an amount which may exceed 

the threshold for material related party transactions, by 

an amount not exceeding an aggregate value of ̀  10,000 

crore individually or collectively.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is 

hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, things 

and matters and give all such directions as it may in 

its absolute discretion deem necessary, expedient or 

desirable, in order to give effect to this resolution.”

8. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following 

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 including any 

statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof 

for the time being in force read with Rules made 

thereunder, as amended, SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, any 

other applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines, 

if any, the Memorandum and Articles of Association of 

the Company and subject to such approvals, consents, 

permissions and sanctions, as may be necessary 

and such condition(s) or modification(s), as may be 

prescribed or imposed while granting such approvals, 

consents, permissions and sanctions, which may be 

agreed to by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the 

Company, consent of the Members of the Company be 

and is hereby accorded for giving effect to the Share 

Purchase and Shareholders Agreement dated 27 August 

2017 (“SPSHA”), entered into amongst the Company, 

DLF Cyber City Developers Limited (“DCCDL”), 

a subsidiary, Rajdhani Investments & Agencies 

Private Limited (“Rajdhani”), Buland Consultants and 

Investments Private Limited (“Buland’), Sidhant Housing 

and Development Company (“Sidhant”) Promoter group 

entities, (hereinafter jointly referred as the ‘Sellers’) and 

Reco Diamond Private Limited (“Investor”), involving 

inter alia, (a) the sale of 75,48,73,516 (Seventy five 

crore forty eight lakhs seventy three thousand five 

hundred and sixteen only) equity shares of ` 10/- 

each of DCCDL, [to be issued upon conversion of 

0.01% 12,05,53,301 (Twelve crore five lakhs fifty three 

thousand three hundred and one only) Cumulative 

Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (“CCPS”) 

of ` 100/- each held by the Sellers] to the Investor for a 

total consideration of ` 8656,05,50,000 (Rupees eight 

thousand six hundred fifty six crore five lakhs and fifty 

thousand only) (which purchase consideration is subject 

to certain adjustments as set-out in the SPSHA but not 

exceeding ` 8956,20,00,000 (Rupees eight thousand 

nine hundred fifty six crore and twenty lakhs only); 

(b) bonus issuance of 5,93,75,987 (Five crore ninety 

three lakhs seventy five thousand nine hundred and 

eighty seven only) Class B Compulsorily Convertible 

Preference Shares of ` 10/- each by DCCDL to the 

Company and the Investor in proportion to their equity 

shareholding in DCCDL immediately after the closing 

under the SPSHA, convertible into equity shares and/ or 

Class B equity shares of DCCDL in accordance with the 

terms of the issuance; (c) buyback of 2,24,11,134 (Two 

crore twenty four lakhs eleven thousand one hundred 

and thirty four only) CCPS held by the Sellers in DCCDL 

for a consideration of ` 1645,82,70,000 (Rupees one 

thousand six hundred forty five crore eighty two lakhs 

and seventy thousand only) prior to the closing of the 

SPSHA; (d) buyback of 1,67,35,564 (One crore sixty 

seven lakhs thirty five thousand five hundred and 

sixty four only) CCPS held by the Sellers in DCCDL 

for a consideration of ` 1402,20,00,000 (Rupees one 

thousand four hundred two crore and twenty lakhs only) 

within 15 (fifteen) months of the closing of the SPSHA; 

(e) bring into effect other transaction documents 

including the Omnibus Agreement dated 27 August 2017 

entered into amongst the Company and its subsidiaries 

with DCCDL and its subsidiaries; and (f) provisions 

regarding inter se rights, duties and obligations of 

the Company and the Investor in connection with the 

management and governance of DCCDL and the 

subsidiaries of DCCDL.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is 

hereby authorised to negotiate, finalise, sign and 

execute all agreements, documents and writings, 

make any application(s) or issue any certification(s), 

settle any question or doubt that may arise in relation 

thereto; to do any or all acts, deeds and things in 

this connection and incidental thereto as it may in 

its absolute discretion deem fit to give effect to this 

resolution including making any such ancillary or 

incidental changes to the SPSHA and other transaction 

documents (including the Omnibus Agreement and 

deed of accession referred therein); and shall have the 

power to delegate all or any powers conferred herein 

to any Committee(s) of the Board/ executives/ officers 
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of the Company and to do all such acts, deeds, matters 

and things, as may be necessary in this regard.”

By Order of the Board

 for DLF LIMITED

Gurugram Subhash Setia

28 August 2017 Company Secretary

Regd. Office: Shopping Mall

3rd Floor, Arjun Marg

Phase-I, DLF City

Gurugram – 122 002, Haryana

CIN: L70101HR1963PLC002484

Telephone No.: +91-124-4334200

Website: www.dlf.in

e-mail: investor-relations@dlf.in

Notes:

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting 

is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on 

a poll instead of himself and the proxy need not 

be a Member of the Company. The instrument of 

proxy in order to be effective should be deposited 

at the Registered Office of the Company not later 

than 48 hours before the meeting. Blank Proxy 

Form is annexed. 

 A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members 

not exceeding 50 (fifty) and holding in the aggregate 

not more than 10% of the total share capital of the 

Company. A member holding more than 10% of the 

total share capital of the Company may appoint a 

single person as proxy and such person shall not 

act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

2. A statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 in respect of Special Business under item nos. 

5 to 8 set-out above to be transacted at the meeting is 

annexed hereto and forms part of this Notice.

3. The detail of Director seeking re-appointment, in terms 

of Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [‘Listing 

Regulations’] and the Companies Act, 2013 (including 

Secretarial  Standard-2) are given in the Corporate 

Governance Report and also annexed hereto and 

forms part of this Notice.

4. Keeping in view the requirements set-out in the 

Companies Act, 2013 the Audit Committee and Board 

of Directors of the Company have recommended 

appointment of S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered 

Accountants (FRN 301003E/E300005) as Statutory 

Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 (five) 

consecutive years from the conclusion of 52nd Annual 

General Meeting till the conclusion of the 57th Annual 

General Meeting, at such remuneration as may be 

fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company. The 

first year of Audit by the aforesaid Auditors will be of the 

financial statements of the Company for the financial 

year ending 31 March 2018. 

 They have consented to and confirmed that their 

appointment, if made, would be within the limits 

specified under Section 141(3)(g) of the Companies 

Act, 2013. They have also confirmed that they are not 

disqualified to be appointed as Auditors in terms of the 

provisions of the proviso to Section 139(1), 141(2) and 

141(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the provisions 

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. 

The Board commends the Ordinary Resolution set-out 

at Item No. 4 of the Notice for approval by the members.

5. Route map of the venue of the Meeting (including 

prominent land mark) is annexed to the Notice.

6. Karvy Computershare Private Limited (Karvy), [Karvy 

Selenium Tower B, Plot No. 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial 

District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad - 500 032, 

Phone No. 040-67162222; Fax No. 040-23420814; 

e-mail: einward.ris@karvy.com; Website: www.karvy.

com; Contact Persons: Mr. Rajesh Jagdishnarayan 

Mishra, Dy. General Manager (RIS)/ Ms. Varalakshmi, 

Assistant General Manager (RIS)] is the Registrar and 

Share Transfer Agent (RTA) for Physical Shares. Karvy 

is also the depository interface of the Company with 

both National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) 

and Central Depository Services (India) Limited 

(CDSL). However, keeping in view the convenience 

of the Members, documents relating to shares will 

continue to be accepted by Karvy at (i) 305, New Delhi 

House, 27, Barakhamba Road, New Delhi - 110 001, 

Ph.: 011-43681700; by the Company at (ii) Registered 

Office of the Company; and also (iii) Corporate Affairs 

Department, DLF Gateway Tower, R Block, DLF City, 

Phase - III, Gurugram - 122 002.

7. Corporate Members intending to send their authorised 

representative(s) to attend the meeting are requested 

to send a certified copy of Board Resolution authorising 

their representative(s) to attend and vote on their 

behalf at the meeting.

8. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books 

of the Company will remain closed from Thursday, 

21 September 2017 to Friday, 29 September 2017 

(both days inclusive) for determining eligibility for 

payment of dividend, if declared at the meeting.

9. The dividend, if declared at the meeting will be paid 

on or before Saturday, 28 October 2017 to those 

Members or their mandates: (a) whose names appear 

as beneficial owners at the end of the business hours on 

Wednesday, 20 September 2017 in the list of beneficial 

owners to be furnished by the depositories (i.e. NSDL 

and CDSL) in respect of the shares held in electronic 
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form; and (b) whose names appear as Members in the 

Company’s Register of Members after giving effect to 

valid transfer requests in physical form lodged with the 

Company or its Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (RTA) 

on or before Wednesday, 20 September 2017.

10. Relevant documents referred to in the Notice and statutory 

registers are open for inspection at the Registered 

Office and/ or Corporate Office of the Company at 

DLF Gateway Tower, R Block, DLF City, Phase - III, 

Gurugram - 122 002 on all working days, between 

14:00 - 16:00 hrs. up to the date of the AGM and shall 

also be available for inspection at the AGM.

11. The Auditors’ Certificate under Regulation 13 of 

the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share 

Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 shall be 

available for inspection at the AGM.

12. The Listing Regulations has mandated that for making 

dividend payments, companies shall use electronic 

clearing services (local, regional or national), direct 

credit, Real Time Gross Settlement (RTGS), National 

Electronic Funds Transfer (NEFT) etc. The Company 

and the RTA are required to seek relevant bank details 

of the shareholders from depositories/ investors for 

making payment of dividends in electronic mode. It is 

also mandatory to print the bank details on the physical 

instrument if the payment is made in physical mode. 

Accordingly, shareholders are requested to provide or 

update (as the case may be) their bank details with the 

respective depository participants for the shares held 

in dematerialized form and with the RTA in respect of 

shares held in physical form.

13. Members holding shares in dematerialised form are 

requested to intimate all changes pertaining to their 

bank mandates, nominations, power of attorney, change 

in address and e-mail address etc., to their respective 

Depository Participants. Changes intimated to the 

Depository Participants will be automatically reflected in 

the Company’s record which will help the Company and 

RTA to provide efficient and better services. Members 

holding shares in physical mode are also requested to 

intimate such changes to the RTA under the signatures of 

first/ joint holder(s). Members holding shares in physical 

mode or in multiple folios are again requested to convert 

their shares in dematerialized form/ for consolidation.

14. Members desirous of obtaining any information/ 

clarification(s), intending to raise any query concerning 

the financial statements and operations of the Company, 

are requested to forward the same at least 7 days prior 

to the date of the meeting to the Company Secretary 

at the Registered/ Corporate Office of the Company, so 

that the same may be attended to appropriately.

15. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified provisions 

relating to unpaid/ unclaimed dividend under Section 124 

and 125 of Companies Act, 2013 and Investor Education 

and Protection Fund (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and 

Refund) Rules, 2016. As per these Rules, dividends 

which are not encashed/ claimed by the shareholders for 

a period of seven consecutive years shall be transferred 

to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) 

Authority. The IEPF Rules also mandate the companies 

to transfer the shares of shareholders whose dividends 

remain unpaid/ unclaimed for a period of seven 

consecutive years to the demat account of IEPF Authority.

 Accordingly, the Company has requested all the 

shareholders to encash/ claim their respective dividend 

during the prescribed period. The details of the unpaid/ 

unclaimed amounts lying with the Company are available 

at https://kosmic.karvy.com/IEPF/IEPFUnpaidQry.

aspx?q=3Eo135ACGFU%3d. The shareholders whose 

dividend/ shares as transferred to the IEPF Authority can 

now claim their dividend/ shares from the Authority by 

following the refund procedure as detailed on the website 

of IEPF Authority http://iepf.gov.in/IEPFA/refund.html

 Further, all shareholders, whose dividend is unclaimed 

pertaining to FY 2009-10 are requested to lodge their 

claim with RTA/ Company by submitting an application 

supported by an indemnity on or before 29 October 2017. 

Reminder letters for claiming unpaid dividend are sent 

from time to time to the shareholders who have not 

claimed their dividend.

 Members who have not encashed their dividend 

warrants within their validity period may write to the 

Company at its Registered Office/ Corporate Office 

or Karvy Computershare Private Limited, Registrar & 

Share Transfer Agent of the Company for obtaining 

duplicate warrants/ or payments in lieu of such 

warrants in the form of the demand draft.

 Public notices were published and individual reminder 

letters were sent to those shareholders whose dividend is 

not claimed/ unpaid for seven consecutive years or more. 

16. In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013, notice of the AGM may be served on the 

Members through electronic means. Members who 

have registered their e-mail IDs with depositories or 

with the Company are being sent this Notice along 

with attendance slip and proxy form by e-mail and the 

Members who have not registered their e-mail IDs will 

receive the Notice through post/ courier.

 In order to receive faster communication and to 

enable the Company to serve the Members better 

and to promote green initiatives, the Members are 

requested to provide/ update their e-mail IDs with 

their respective Depository Participants (DPs) or 

e-mail at dlf.cs@karvy.com to get the Annual Report 

and other documents/ communication on such 

e-mail address.
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 Members holding shares in physical form are also 

requested to intimate their e-mail addresses to the 

RTA/ Company either by e-mail at dlf.cs@karvy.

com or investor-relations@dlf.in by sending a 

communication at the address mentioned at Note 6 

above or at the Registered Office/ Corporate Office 

of the Company.

17. Members may also note that the Notice along with 

attendance slip and proxy form will also be available 

on the Company’s website www.dlf.in and also on the 

Karvy’s website https://evoting.karvy.com

18. Voting through electronic means

 I. In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 

of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of 

the Companies (Management and Administration) 

Rules, 2014 and Regulation 44 of Listing Regulations, 

the Company is pleased to provide Members the 

facility to exercise their right to vote at the 52nd AGM 

by electronic means. The Members may cast their 

votes using an electronic system from a place other 

than the venue of the Meeting (‘remote e-voting’).

 II. The Company has engaged the services of Karvy 

Computershare Private Limited (‘Karvy’) as the 

agency to provide remote e-voting facility.

 III. The facility for voting either through electronic 

voting system or polling paper shall also be made 

available at the AGM and the Members attending 

the AGM who have not already cast their vote by 

remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their 

rights at the AGM.

 IV. The Members who have cast their vote by remote 

e-voting may also attend the AGM but shall not be 

entitled to cast their vote again and if any Member 

casts a vote at the AGM, then such vote will be 

considered invalid.

 V. The Company has appointed Mr. Ashok Tyagi, 

Company Secretary in whole-time practice as 

Scrutinizer and Mr. Vineet K. Chaudhary, Company 

Secretary in whole-time practice as alternate 

Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a 

fair and transparent manner. They have given their 

consents for such appointment.

 VI. The voting rights of the shareholders shall be in 

proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity 

share capital of the Company as on the cut-off 

date i.e. Friday, 22 September 2017. A person 

who is not a Member as on the cut-off date 

should treat this Notice for information only.

 VII. A person, whose name is recorded in the Register 

of Members or in the register of beneficial 

owners maintained by the Depositories as on 

the cut-off date, i.e. Friday, 22 September 2017 

only shall be entitled to avail the facility of 

remote e-voting/ voting at the AGM.

 VIII. Any person, who acquires shares and become 

Member of the Company after the despatch of 

the Notice and holds shares as on the cut-off date 

i.e. Friday, 22 September 2017 may obtain the login 

ID and password in the manner mentioned below:

(a) If the mobile number of the Member is 

registered against Folio No./ DP ID - Client 

ID, the Member may send SMS : MYEPWD 

<space> e-voting Event Number + Folio No. 

or DP ID Client ID to 9212993399

 Example for NSDL: MYEPWD <SPACE> 

IN12345612345678

 Example for CDSL: MYEPWD <SPACE> 

1402345612345678

 Example for Physical: MYEPWD <SPACE> 

XXXX1234567890

(b) If e-mail address or mobile number of the 

Member is registered against Folio No./ DP 

ID-Client ID, then on the home page of https://

evoting.karvy.com, the Member may click 

“Forgot Password” and enter Folio No. or DP 

ID-Client ID and PAN to generate a password.

(c) Member may call Karvy’s toll free number 

1800 345 4001 for any assistance.

(d) Member may send an e-mail request to 

evoting@karvy.com

 If the Member is already registered with 

Karvy for remote e-voting then he can use 

his existing user ID and password/ PIN for 

casting vote through remote e-voting.

 IX. The remote e-voting period will commence from 

Monday, 25 September 2017 (9.30 A.M.) and end 

on Thursday, 28 September 2017 (5.00 P.M.). 

The e-voting module shall be disabled by Karvy for 

voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is 

cast by the Member, he/ she shall not be allowed 

to change it subsequently or cast the vote again.

 The instructions for e-voting are as under:

 A. In case of Members receiving e-mail from Karvy:

(i) Open the e-mail and open PDF file viz; “DLF 

e-voting.pdf” with your Client ID or Folio No. 

as password. The said PDF file contains your 

user ID and password for e-voting. Please 

note that the password is an initial password.

(ii) Launch internet browser by typing the 

following URL: https://evoting.karvy.com

(iii) Enter the login credentials.
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or dlfevoting@dlf.in with a copy marked to 

evoting@karvy.com. They may also upload 

the same in the e-voting module in their login. 

The scanned image of the above mentioned 

documents should be in the naming format 

“Corporate Name EVENT NO.”

 B. In case of Members receiving physical copy of 

the Notice:

(i) Initial password, alongwith User ID and 

EVEN (E-voting Event Number) is provided 

in the table given in the Ballot Form.

(ii) Please follow all steps from S. No. (ii)-(xii) 

given above to cast your vote.

 C. Other instructions:

(i) In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently 

Asked Questions (FAQs) for shareholders and 

e-voting User Manual for shareholders available 

at the download section of https://evoting.

karvy.com or contact Ms. Varalakshmi of Karvy 

Computershare Private Limited, at 040-67162222 

or at Tel. No. 1800 345 4001 (toll free).

(ii) If you are already registered with Karvy for 

e-voting then you can use your existing user 

ID and password for casting your vote.

 X. The Scrutinizer(s) shall immediately after the 

conclusion of voting at the meeting, count the votes 

cast at the meeting and thereafter unblock the 

votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence 

of at least 2 (two) witnesses not in the employment 

of the Company. The Scrutinizer(s) shall submit a 

consolidated Scrutinizers’ Report of the votes cast 

in favour or against, if any, not later than 48 (forty 

eight) hours of conclusion of the meeting to the 

Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing 

who shall countersign the same. The Chairman or 

any other person authorized by him in writing shall 

declare the results of the voting forthwith.

 XI. The Results declared along with the Scrutinizers’ 

Report shall be placed on the Company’s 

website www.dlf.in and on the website of Karvy 

immediately after the results are declared by the 

Chairman or any other person authorized by him. 

The Company shall, simultaneously, forward the 

results to the concerned stock exchanges where 

its equity shares are listed.

19. Members are requested:

 (a)  To bring Attendance Slip duly completed and 

signed at the meeting and not to carry briefcase or 

bag inside the meeting venue for security reasons;

 (b)  To quote their Folio No./ DP ID - Client ID and 

e-mail ID in all correspondence; and

(iv) After entering the details appropriately, click 

on “Login”.

(v) You will reach the Password change menu 

wherein you are required to mandatorily 

change your password. The new password 

shall comprise minimum 8 characters with at 

least one upper case (A-Z), one lower case 

(a-z), one numeric value (0-9) and a special 

character (like *,#,@, etc.). The system will 

prompt you to change your password and 

update your contact details like mobile, e-mail 

etc. on first login. You may also enter the secret 

question and answer of your choice to retrieve 

your password in case you forget it. It is strongly 

recommended not to share your password with 

any other person and take utmost care to keep 

your password confidential.

(vi) You need to login again with your new 

credentials.

(vii) Select “EVEN” of DLF Limited and click on – 

‘Submit’.

(viii) On the voting page, number of shares as held 

by you as on the cut-off date will appear. If 

you desire to cast all the votes assenting/ 

dissenting to the Resolution(s) then enter all 

shares and click FOR/ AGAINST as the case 

may be. You are not required to cast all your 

votes in the same manner. You may also 

choose the option ABSTAIN in case you wish 

to abstain from voting.

(ix) Members holding multiple folios/ demat 

accounts shall choose the voting process 

separately for each folio/ demat account.

(x) Cast your vote by selecting an appropriate 

option and click on “Submit”. A confirmation 

box will be displayed. Click “Ok” to confirm else 

“Cancel” to modify. Once you confirm, you will 

not be allowed to modify your vote. During the 

voting period, members can login any number 

of times till they have voted on the resolution(s).

(xi) Once the vote on the resolution(s) is cast by 

a member, such member shall not be allowed 

to change it subsequently.

(xii) Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than 

individuals, Hindu Undivided Family (HUF), 

Non-resident Indian (NRI), etc.) are required 

to send scanned copy (PDF/ JPG Format) 

of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority 

Letter etc. together with attested specimen 

signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) 

who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizers 

through e-mail at dlfscrutinizer@gmail.com 
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 (c)  To please note that no gift/ gift coupon/ refreshment 

coupon will be distributed at the meeting.

STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES 

ACT, 2013

ITEM NO. 5

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company, on 

the recommendation of the Audit Committee, approved the 

appointment of M/s R.J. Goel & Co. (FRN 000026), Cost 

Accountants as Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of cost 

records pertaining to real estate development activities of 

the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2017.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 

Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor, 

as recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by 

the Board has to be ratified by the members of the Company. 

Accordingly, consent of the members is being sought by way 

of an ordinary resolution for ratification of the remuneration 

payable to the Cost Auditor for the financial year 2016-17.

No Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 

or their respective relatives, are in any way concerned or 

interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.

The Board commends the resolution for approval of the 

members as an Ordinary Resolution.

ITEM NO. 6

In order to augment long-term resources for business needs 

and to reduce reliance on the banking system, the Company 

may wish to issue Non-convertible Debentures (“NCDs”) 

including subordinated debentures, bonds and/ or other 

debt securities of up to ` 2,500 crore (Rupees two thousand 

five hundred crore only) to banks/ financial institutions/ 

mutual funds/ body corporate(s) and/ or other persons. 

The Company may offer or invite subscription for NCDs 

including subordinated debentures, bonds and/ or other debt 

securities, in one or more series and/ or tranches through 

private placement on preferential basis with authority to 

the Board of Directors (the “Board”) to determine the terms 

and conditions, including the issue price, interest rate, 

repayment, security, currency or otherwise, as it may deem 

expedient and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things 

in connection therewith and incidental thereto as the Board 

in its absolute discretion deems fit.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 42 and 71 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies 

(Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, as 

amended, a company offering or making an invitation to 

subscribe to secured/ unsecured redeemable NCDs, on 

a private placement basis is required to obtain the prior 

approval of members by way of a special resolution. Such 

an approval can be obtained once a year for all the offers 

and invitation made for such NCDs during the year.

The members vide their resolution dated 30 August 2016 

had accorded their approval to offer or invite subscription 

to NCDs of up to ` 2,500 crore (Rupees two thousand five 

hundred crore only) which is valid for a period of one year 

in terms of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of 

Securities) Rules, 2014. Hence, the Company requires an 

enabling approval of the members for any issuance of NCDs.

The proceeds of the above-mentioned securities/ 

instruments are intended to be utilized for business purposes 

including repayment of debts in order to reduce the interest 

cost and to reduce reliance on the banking system keeping 

in mind as well as to be in line to the Reserve Bank of 

India advisory suggesting large corporates to have certain 

minimum extent of their borrowings from corporate debt 

market.

No Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 

or their respective relatives, are in any way concerned or 

interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.

The Board commends the resolution for approval of the 

members as a Special Resolution.

ITEM NO. 7

Your Company is primarily engaged in the business of 

development and sale of residential properties and leasing 

of office space, IT Park, IT SEZ and retail properties. 

Some of the businesses are being operated through 

subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates, etc. The funding 

obligations of such entities are partially met out of the 

Company’s cash flow. In addition thereto, the Company 

also provides security(ies) and corporate guarantee(s) to 

secure the borrowings and other facilities being availed 

by subsidiary(ies)/ joint venture(s)/ associate(s). In certain 

cases, such subsidiaries/ joint ventures/ associates have 

also extended security of their movable and/ or immovable 

assets to secure the borrowings/ financial assistance 

availed by the Company. Further, the Company also enters 

into other transactions with its related parties.

As per Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing 

Regulations”), a transaction with a related party is 

considered material, if the transaction/ transactions to be 

entered into individually or taken together with previous 

transactions during a financial year, exceeds 10% of the 

annual consolidated turnover of the Company, as per 

the last audited financial statements of the Company. 

Pursuant to the said Regulation, all material related party 

transactions require approval of the members through an 

ordinary resolution and all related parties shall abstain from 

voting on such resolutions. However, the said requirement 

for approval of the shareholders is not applicable for 

transactions entered into between a holding company 
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and its wholly-owned subsidiary whose accounts are 

consolidated with the said holding company.

For this purpose, the Company had obtained approval of 

the members vide their resolution dated 28 August 2015 

for entering into contracts/ arrangements/ transactions with 

DLF Cyber City Developers Limited (“DCCDL”), DLF Assets 

Private Limited, (“DAPL”), DLF Utilities Limited (“Utilities”) 

and DLF Universal Limited (“DUL”), subsidiaries and 

related parties of the Company up to an amount exceeding 

the threshold for material related party transactions by an 

amount not exceeding an aggregate value of ` 12,500 

crore, individually and/ or collectively.

Pursuant to the said approval, the Company has entered 

into transactions with above mentioned related parties. 

Please note that a significant portion of the sanctioned limits 

i.e. more than 90% was consumed for creating/ availing 

security and providing/ availing of corporate guarantees 

against the loans availed by the said related parties and/ 

or by DLF Limited. The remaining portion of the sanctioned 

limit was utilized for other related party transactions in 

relation to granting of loans, leasing, building maintenance 

services, sale/ purchase of material, transfer of rights, 

construction cost etc. and consequently the sanctioned 

limit is nearing complete utilization.

Going forward and in the ordinary course of business, 

the Company may enter into new transactions inter alia 

in relation to lending/ borrowing, providing and receiving 

corporate guarantee(s) and security(ies) for existing/ 

new credit facility(ies), leasing, management service(s), 

building management service(s), sale/ purchase of material, 

securities, assets, transfer of construction cost(s), transfer/ 

collaboration for rights etc. with DCCDL, DAPL, Utilities 

and DLF Power & Services Limited (“DPSL”), subsidiaries 

and related parties of the Company, which may exceed 

the threshold for material related party transactions by an 

amount not exceeding an aggregate value of ̀  10,000 crore, 

individually and/ or collectively.

The Company holds 100% of the equity share capital in 

DCCDL, DAPL and DPSL. Whereas, the Company holds 

approx. 99.98% equity shares in Utilities. Further, accounts 

of these companies are also consolidated with the Company 

and placed before the shareholders for approval.

Since some of the above transactions are not fixed for any 

particular term, it is not possible for the Company to ascribe 

an explicit monetary value to such transactions. However, 

approval of the Audit Committee and/ or Board, wherever 

required, shall be obtained in terms of the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations.

The approval of the shareholders is being sought by way 

of an ordinary resolution for the proposed material related 

party transactions.

The contracts/ arrangements/ transactions with the above 

entities are necessary in the ordinary course and have a 

significant role in the Company’s operations. Therefore, the 

Board of Directors commends the resolution as set-out at item 

no. 7 for approval of the shareholders as an Ordinary Resolution.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of 

the Company or their respective relatives is concerned or 

interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set-out 

at item no. 7 except to the extent of their directorship and 

shareholding in respective related party(ies). The promoter/ 

promoter group entities holds 0.01% 15,96,99,999 

Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares in 

DCCDL, which is in excess of 2% of its paid-up share capital.

ITEM NO. 8

1. The Members may please note that the Audit Committee 

was authorised by the Board of Directors on 29 August 

2014 to inter alia comprehensively evaluate, review 

and recommend various strategic options to drive 

sustainable and long-term growth and development 

to the rental business; create the optimum structure 

for rental business in order to improve efficiency 

and control and to reduce conflicts of interest, if any, 

inter se affiliated persons/ entities in keeping with best 

corporate governance practices.

2. On 8 October 2015 the Board of Directors had, based 

on the recommendations of the Audit Committee, 

approved the proposal for promoter group companies 

namely, Rajdhani Investments & Agencies Private 

Limited, Buland Consultants and Investments Private 

Limited, Sidhant Housing and Development Company  

(hereinafter jointly referred to as the “Sellers”) to sell 

15,96,99,999 Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible 

Preference Shares (“CCPS”) of DLF Cyber City 

Developers Limited (“DCCDL”), a subsidiary (which 

would result in 40% equity shareholding in DCCDL 

upon conversion of the CCPS), to unrelated third party 

institutional investor(s) (the “CCPS Sale Transaction”) 

subject to certain conditions. The Sellers, subject 

to receipt of necessary approvals/consents in 

accordance with all applicable laws shall invest back 

in the Company, a substantial amount (net of taxes/

other charges) of the consideration received from 

the CCPS Sale Transaction. Further, the Board of 

Directors authorized the Audit Committee inter alia, 

to determine and finalize the strategic terms of CCPS 

Sale Transaction including selection of unrelated third 

party institutional investor(s) in consultation with the 

Sellers, as appropriate, to negotiate and finalise the 

transaction documents and to oversee and facilitate 

the CCPS Sale Transaction. 

3. On 21 October 2016, the Audit Committee authorized 

two of its members to actively engage in the process, 

guide the management team and provide the Audit 

Committee the final terms and conditions of the CCPS 

Sale Transaction for its consideration. 
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4. On 1 March 2017 after due consultation with the 

Sellers, the Audit Committee approved execution of an 

‘Exclusivity Agreement’ with an affiliate of GIC Singapore 

and entering into the next phase of the sale process to 

negotiate the definitive transaction documents. 

5. (a) The Audit Committee on 25 August 2017, after 

due deliberations and review of the transaction 

documents, submitted its recommendations to the 

Board to consider execution of a Share Purchase 

and Shareholders Agreement (“SPSHA”) with 

Reco Diamond Private Limited (“Investor”), an 

affiliate of GIC Singapore, the Sellers and DCCDL 

providing for inter alia: (a) the sale of 75,48,73,516 

(Seventy five crore forty eight lakhs seventy three 

thousand five hundred and sixteen only) equity 

shares of ` 10/- each of DCCDL [to be issued upon 

conversion of 0.01% 12,05,53,301 (Twelve crore 

five lakhs fifty three thousand three hundred and 

one only) Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible 

Preference Shares (“CCPS”) of ̀  100/- each held by 

the Sellers] to the Investor, for a total consideration 

of ` 8656,05,50,000 (Rupees eight thousand six 

hundred fifty six crore five lakhs and fifty thousand 

only) subject to certain adjustments as set-out in 

the SPSHA (which consideration will not exceed 

` 8956,20,00,000 (Rupees eight thousand nine 

hundred fifty six crore and twenty lakhs only); 

(b) bonus issuance of 5,93,75,987 (Five crore ninety 

three lakhs seventy five thousand nine hundred and 

eighty seven only) Class B Compulsorily Convertible 

Preference Shares of ̀  10/- each by DCCDL, to the 

Company and the Investor in proportion to their 

equity shareholding in DCCDL immediately after 

closing under the SPSHA, convertible into equity 

shares and/ or Class B equity shares of DCCDL 

in accordance with the terms of the issuance; 

(c) buyback of 2,24,11,134 (Two crore twenty four 

lakhs eleven thousand one hundred and thirty four 

only) CCPS held by the Sellers in DCCDL for a 

consideration of ` 1645,82,70,000 (Rupees one 

thousand six hundred forty five crore eighty two 

lakhs and seventy thousand only) prior to closing of 

the SPSHA; (d) buyback of 1,67,35,564 (One crore 

sixty seven lakhs thirty five thousand five hundred 

and sixty four only) CCPS held by the Sellers in 

DCCDL for a consideration of ` 1402,20,00,000 

(Rupees one thousand four hundred two crore 

and twenty lakhs only) within 15 (fifteen) months of 

closing of the SPSHA; and (e) provisions regarding 

inter se rights, duties and obligations of the 

Company and the Investor in connection with the 

management and governance of DCCDL and the 

subsidiaries of DCCDL (“Proposed Transaction”). 

 (b) Based on the recommendations of the Audit 

Committee, the Board in its meeting held on 

25 August 2017, approved the execution of the 

Share Purchase and Shareholders Agreement and 

other transaction documents including the Omnibus 

Agreement, subject to approval of the Shareholders 

of the Company and other necessary regulatory 

approvals. Accordingly, the Company has entered 

into (a) the Share Purchase and Shareholders 

Agreement dated 27 August 2017 with the Investor, 

DCCDL and the Sellers; and (b) the Omnibus 

Agreement dated 27 August 2017 (“Omnibus 

Agreement”) entered into amongst the Company 

and its subsidiaries with DCCDL and its subsidiaries 

to duly protect the rights and interests of DCCDL and 

its subsidiaries in relation to certain land parcels. 

6. GIC is a Sovereign Wealth Fund established by the 

Government of Singapore to manage Singapore’s 

foreign reserves. GIC’s portfolio in India is well-diversified 

across the public and private markets, debt and 

fund investments. It is also diversified by sector, with 

investments in the residential, office, hospitality, logistics 

and retail sectors. GIC, through its affiliates has previously 

partnered with DLF Home Developers Limited, a 

wholly-owned subsidiary company, in a joint venture to 

invest in two of the prime central Delhi projects. 

 The Investor upon purchase of the equity shares (to be 

allotted to the Sellers upon conversion of the CCPS) 

from the Sellers will become the joint venture partner 

of the Company in DCCDL.

7. The Proposed Transaction will help in resolving conflict 

of interest in the ownership of DCCDL and create an 

optimum structure for REITs. Further, reinvestment 

of the substantial portion of sale consideration to be 

received by the Sellers (part of the promoter group) in 

the Company will help in reduction of the debt of the 

Company and will be a positive endorsement of the 

Company by the promoters. 

8. The key terms and conditions of the SPSHA are as 

follows:

 (a) On the date of closing of the SPSHA, the Investor 

will purchase from the Sellers 75,48,73,516 

(Seventy five crore forty eight lakhs seventy three 

thousand five hundred and sixteen only) equity 

shares of ` 10/- each of DCCDL to be issued upon 

conversion of 0.01% 12,05,53,301 (Twelve crore 

five lakhs fifty three thousand three hundred and 

one only) Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible 

Preference Shares (“CCPS”) of ̀  100/- each held by 

the Sellers, to the Investor for a total consideration 

of ` 8656,05,50,000 (Rupees eight thousand six 

hundred fifty six crore five lakhs and fifty thousand 

only) subject to certain adjustments as set-out in 

the SPSHA, which consideration will not exceed 

` 8956,20,00,000 (Rupees eight thousand nine 

hundred fifty six crore and twenty lakhs only). 
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 (b) The SPSHA has mechanism for potential stake 

adjustment of up to a maximum 0.58% of DCCDL’s 

total paid-up equity capital at 3 years from the 

closing of the transaction, if certain terms and 

conditions of the SPSHA are not met. 

 (c) 2,24,11,134 (Two crore twenty four lakhs eleven 

thousand one hundred and thirty four only) CCPS 

held by the Sellers in DCCDL shall be bought back 

by DCCDL for a consideration of ̀  1645,82,70,000 

(Rupees one thousand six hundred forty five crore 

eighty two lakhs and seventy thousand only) prior 

to closing of the SPSHA. 

 (d) DCCDL shall issue 5,93,75,987 (Five crore ninety 

three lakhs seventy five thousand nine hundred 

and eighty seven only) Class B Compulsorily 

Convertible Preference Shares of ` 10/- each, on 

a Bonus basis, to the Company and the Investor in 

proportion to their equity shareholding in DCCDL 

immediately after closing, convertible into equity 

shares and/ or Class B equity shares of DCCDL in 

accordance with the terms of the issuance.

 (e) Post the above steps at and immediately after 

closing, the Investor and the Company shall hold 

33.34% and 66.66% of paid-up equity capital in 

DCCDL, respectively.

 (f) The Sellers shall not transfer the remaining 

1,67,35,564 (One crore sixty seven lakhs thirty 

five thousand five hundred and sixty four only) 

CCPS held by them except as specifically 

permitted under the SPSHA. The Company shall 

procure that DCCDL shall complete buyback of 

such CCPS within 15 (fifteen) months of closing 

of the SPSHA for an aggregate consideration 

of ` 1402,20,00,000 (Rupees one thousand 

four hundred two crore and twenty lakhs only). 

In case the buyback is not completed within the 

aforementioned time period, the Company and 

the Investor shall mutually discuss the manner 

in which the stake holding representing such 

CCPS can be extinguished in accordance with 

applicable law. 

 (g) Consent of both the Company and the Investor 

is required in relation to certain affirmative vote 

matters (i.e. veto rights) with respect to DCCDL 

and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the 

“Group’). Some of the key affirmative vote matters 

are as follows: 

 • Amendment, supplement or restatement to 

the Memorandum or Articles of Association.

 • Varying rights attached to any class of shares 

or securities, including the Class B CCPS 

and Class B equity shares.

 • Mergers, amalgamation, de-merger, 

re-organization, dissolution, winding-up 

or liquidation of any member of the Group, 

whether or not voluntary and including 

any re-organization which has the effect of 

liquidation, or change in legal status e.g. 

public to private company or vice-versa.

 • Entering into any new projects or modifying 

the project mix of any project, including new 

projects other than as agreed in the business 

plan.

 • Any transaction involving a related party.

 • Public offering or listing or quotation of the 

shares of any member of the Group on any 

stock exchange, de-listing of the shares of 

any member of the Group, including valuation 

and pricing with respect to such actions.

 • Approving the draft business plan, leasing 

guidelines, development budget and annual 

budget of any of the members of the Group 

including approving any amendments, 

modifications, addendum or additions to the 

approved business plan, leasing guidelines, 

development budget and/ or annual budget.

 • Creating a new subsidiary or group 

company of any member of the Group, or 

contribution of capital by any member of the 

Group in any Person (including any minority 

investments), or divesting or otherwise 

diluting any investments in any member of 

the Group.

 • Any borrowings, indebtedness or financial 

commitment in excess of specified 

thresholds.

 • Any recommendation by the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee of the Board or 

approval by the Board of the appointment, 

termination, replacement and compensation 

of the Key Management Personnel of DCCDL 

or its Subsidiaries.

 (h) The SPSHA is subject to customary condition 

precedents, including receipt of unconditional 

approval from the Competition Commission of 

India by the Investor; approval of the Shareholders 

of the Company; approval of any other regulators, 

lenders, etc., as may be required. 

 (i) After closing of the SPSHA, the Company is 

required to preserve and maintain the rights 

and entitlements of DCCDL under various land 

agreements/ transactions and undertake certain 

actions, as detailed under the SPSHA and Omnibus 
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Agreement. The Investor will also become party 

to Omnibus Agreement at closing. The Omnibus 

Agreement is entered to duly protect the rights and 

interests of DCCDL and its subsidiaries in relation 

to certain land parcels.

 (j) The Investor is locked in for 4 (four) years 

from the date of closing and subsequently 

thereafter, the Investor can request for a liquidity 

event through an IPO listing or a REIT listing. 

The Company will have a right of first refusal 

(“ROFR”) to acquire the shares being offered by 

the Investor in a listing event. The Investor also 

has a right to transfer its shares to a third party 

subject to the Company being given a ROFO, 

after an agreed indicative price discovery 

process. There are also lock-in provisions and 

transfer restriction(s) on the Company’s shares 

held in DCCDL.

 (k) As detailed in the SPSHA, the Company 

has provided representations customary for 

a transaction of this nature in relation to the 

business operations, legal compliance, projects 

and assets of DCCDL Group and certain 

specific representations in relation to critical 

matters pertaining to DCCDL Group’s properties 

and compliance. Such representations are 

backed by indemnity from the Company. The 

Company has, under the SPSHA, also provided 

specific indemnities for certain critical matters 

pertaining to DCCDL Group’s properties. 

The indemnity obligations of the Company in 

relation to corresponding representations are 

subject to agreed time and monetary limits 

stated in the SPSHA. The indemnity obligations 

of the Company in relation to certain specific 

representations and certain specific indemnities 

(as identified under the SPSHA) shall not be 

limited in quantum or time.

 (l) The Company is liable to pay indemnity amounts 

only to DCCDL Group and not to the Investor. 

 (m) The SPSHA has customary provisions for Investor 

to transfer indemnity rights to a transferee to 

whom it transfers its stake in DCCDL after lock-in, 

subject to certain conditions.

 (n) All indemnities will fall away in the event of a REIT 

or IPO listing.

 (o) The Sellers have provided customary representations 

backed by indemnity in relation to the title of the 

shares being sold by the Sellers to the Investor. 

DCCDL and the Investor have provided customary 

representations regarding their respective 

authority and ability to enter into the transaction 

documents. 

 (p) The Company shall, at closing of the SPSHA 

and until such time it holds more than 50% of 

the equity share capital of DCCDL have the right 

to nominate 4 (four) Directors on the Board of 

DCCDL and each of its subsidiaries. The Investor 

shall, at closing of the SPSHA and until such time 

it holds less than 50% of the equity share capital 

of DCCDL have the right to nominate 2 (two) 

Directors on the Board of DCCDL and each of 

its subsidiaries. If the equity shareholding of 

the Company and Investor are equal, they have 

the right to appoint one-half of the total number 

of non-independent Directors on the Board 

of DCCDL and each of its subsidiaries. From 

the closing of the SPSHA, DCCDL shall have 

3 (three) independent Directors. 

 (q) The Company and the Investor is restricted at all 

times from transferring its shares in DCCDL to 

certain categories of prohibited investors and the 

Investor is prohibited from transferring its shares 

in DCCDL to certain specified competitors of the 

Company (except in the case of an event of default 

by the Company).

 (r) Subject to the terms specified in the SPSHA, 

both the Company and the Investor are permitted 

to transfer shares in tranches of minimum of 

5% (five percent). Subject to certain exceptions 

as are mentioned in the SPSHA, the minimum 

shareholding required to be maintained by 

the Company and the Investor is 34% (thirty 

four percent) and 17% (seventeen percent), 

respectively. In case pursuant to a proposed 

transfer, the shareholding of the Company/ 

Investor would fall below such threshold, the 

transferor is required to transfer its entire stake in 

DCCDL. 

 (s) All rights of the Company and the Investor in 

DCCDL shall be exercised on a consortium basis, 

whereby the Company or the Investor, as the case 

may be, will exercise its rights together with the 

persons to whom it has transferred its shares in 

DCCDL as a consortium and not as individual 

holders.

 (t) The SPSHA has other customary provisions 

relating to events of default, consequences of 

default, term and termination, dispute resolution 

etc. The consequences of default contemplates 

customary sale/purchase rights relating to the 

shares in favour of the non-defaulting party. 

Similarly, in case of adverse impact on the title 

of the Investor shares due to a specific order, 

investor may sell or seek indemnification from the 

Company. 
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  The relevant documents are available for 

inspection at Registered Office and/ or Corporate 

Office of the Company on all working days between 

14:00 - 16:00 hrs. up to the date of the AGM and 

shall also be available for inspection at the AGM. 

  None of the Directors and Key Managerial 

Personnel of the Company or their respective 

relatives is concerned or interested, financially 

or otherwise, in the resolution set-out at item 

no. 8 except to the extent of their directorship 

and shareholding in DCCDL and its subsidiaries. 

The promoter/ promoter group holds 0.01% 

15,96,99,999 Cumulative Compulsorily 

Convertible Preference Shares of ` 100/- each in 

DCCDL, which is in excess of 2% of its paid-up 

share capital. 

Details of Director seeking Re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting

[In pursuance of Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

Name of Director Mr. G.S. Talwar

Date of Birth 22 March 1948

Age 69

Date of Appointment 21 April 2006

Qualification(s) Bachelor’s degree in Economics 

Number of Shares held 1,00,540

Expertise in specific functional areas A known banker and investment advisor has enriched, vast and varied 

experience in Banking, Investment and Financial Management Services. 

Other Directorship(s) Antriksh Properties Private Limited

Asahi India Glass Limited

Desent Promoters & Developers Private Limited

Great Eastern Energy Corporation Limited

Madhukar Housing Development Company*

Power Housing and Developers Private Limited

Sabre Investment Advisor India Private Limited

Sambhav Housing and Development Company*

Sketch Promoters and Developers Private Limited

Skills Academy Private Limited

Sunrise BPO Service Pte. Ltd.^

Udyan Housing and Development Company*

Committee Positions in other Public 

Companies#

Nil

Relationships between Directors inter se Dr. K.P. Singh 

* A Private Company with Unlimited Liability.

^ A company incorporated outside India.

#  Pursuant to Regulation 26 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Membership 

of only Audit and Stakeholders Relationship Committee of public limited companies have been considered.

  The Board of Directors commends the resolution 

as set-out at item no. 8 for approval of the 

Shareholders as an Ordinary Resolution. 

By Order of the Board

 for DLF LIMITED

Gurugram Subhash Setia

28 August 2017 Company Secretary

Regd. Office: Shopping Mall

3rd Floor, Arjun Marg, Phase-I, DLF City

Gurugram - 122 002, Haryana

CIN: L70101HR1963PLC002484

Telephone No.: +91-124-4334200

Website: www.dlf.in

e-mail: investor-relations@dlf.in
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I/We certify that I/We am/are registered shareholder/proxy of the Company.

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 52nd Annual General Meeting of the Company  on  Friday, 29 September 2017 at DLF Club 5, Opposite 

Trinity Tower, Club Drive, DLF5, Gurugram - 122 002 (Haryana).

…………………………………………

NOTE: Please complete this and hand it over at the entrance of the hall. Signature

* Applicable for shares held in electronic form.

No Gift/ Gift Coupon / Refreshment Coupon will be distributed at the Meeting

Affi x

` 0.30

Revenue

Stamp

DP Id* NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE REGISTERED SHAREHOLDER / PROXY

Client Id* / Folio No.

No. of Share(s)

Name of the Member(s):

Registered address:

e-mail Id:

Folio No./Client Id*:

DP Id*:

ATTENDANCE SLIP
52nd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING - Friday, 29 September 2017 AT 12.00 Noon

PROXY FORM
52nd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING - Friday, 29 September 2017 AT 12.00 Noon

I/We being the member(s) holding....................... shares hereby appoint:

(1) Name.………………………………………..Address:……………………………………………………....e-mail Id:…………………………………….. or failing him;

(2) Name.………………………………………..Address:……………………………………………………....e-mail Id:…………………………………….. or failing him;

(3) Name.………………………………………..Address:……………………………………………………....e-mail Id:……………………………………..….….….….…. 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 52nd Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on 

Friday, the 29 September 2017 at DLF Club 5, Opposite Trinity Tower, Club Drive, DLF5, Gurugram  - 122 002 (Haryana) at 12.00 Noon and at any 

adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Res. No. Resolution For# Against#

1. Adoption of Financial Statements (including the Consolidated Financial Statements) for the fi nancial year ended 

31 March 2017.

2. Declaration of Dividend.

3. Re-appointment of Mr. G.S. Talwar, who retires by rotation. 

4. Appointment of S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP (FRN 301003E/E300005) as Statutory Auditors and to fi x their remuneration.

5. Approval/ Ratifi cation of fee payable to Cost Auditor.

6. Approval to off er or invite for subscription of Non-convertible Debentures including other debt securities on 

private placement basis. 

7. Approval of related party transactions. 

8. Approval of Share Purchase and Shareholders Agreement and related transaction documents. 

* Applicable for shares held in electronic form.

Signed this …............................… day of ……..............................2017

Signature

Signature of proxy holder(s)

P.T.O.

DLF LIMITED
Regd. Offi ce: Shopping Mall, 3rd Floor, Arjun Marg, Phase-I

DLF City, Gurugram – 122 002, Haryana

CIN: L70101HR1963PLC002484; Telephone No. 91-124-4334200

Website: www.dlf.in; e-mail: investor-relations@dlf.in

DLF LIMITED
Regd. Offi ce: Shopping Mall, 3rd Floor, Arjun Marg, Phase-I

DLF City, Gurugram – 122 002, Haryana

CIN: L70101HR1963PLC002484; Telephone No. 91-124-4334200

Website: www.dlf.in; e-mail: investor-relations@dlf.in



Notes:

 (1) This form of proxy in order to be eff ective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Offi  ce of the Company not less 

than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

 (2) A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

 (3) A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fi fty and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital 

of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may 

appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

# (4) This is only optional. Please put a ‘X’ or ‘ ’ in the appropriate column against the resolution(s) indicated in the Box. If you leave the ‘For’/or 

‘Against’ column blank against any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she deems appropriate.

 (5) Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person, if he so desire.

 (6) In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be suffi cient, but names of all the joint holders should be mentioned.
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